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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
Bansal Wire Industries Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We  have  audited  the  consolidated  financial  statements  of Bansal  Wire  Industries
Limited  (hereinafter  referred  to  as  the  "Holding  Company")  and  its  subsidiaries
(Holding  Company  and  its  subsidiaries together referred to  as  "the  Group") which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31St  March 2024, and the consolidated
statement  of profit  and  loss  (including  other  comprehensive  income),  consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then  ended,  and  notes  to  the  consolidated  financial  statements,  including  material
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as `1he
consolidated financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given  to  us,  the  aforesaid  consolidated  financial  statements  give  the  information
required by the Companies Act, 2013  ("Act") in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India,  of the consolidated state  of affairs of the  Group as  at  31  March 2024,  of its
consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity
and consolidated cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We  conducted  our  audit  in  accordance  with  the  Standards  on  Auditing  (SAs)
specified under Section  143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are
fndkler desor.teed .in the Auditor's  Responsibilities for the Audit Of the Consolidated
Fz.7!c!#c!.cz/  Sfczferme#fs  section  of our  report.  We  are  independent  of the  Group  in
accordance  with  the  ethical  requirements  that  are  relevant  to  our  audit  of  the
consolidated  financial  statements  in  terms  of the  Code  of  Ethics  issued  by  the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions  of the Act,
and  we  have  fulfilled  our  other  ethical  responsibilities  in  accordance  with  these
requirements.  We  believe  that  the  audit  evidence  obtained  by  us
appropriate   to   provide   a   basis   for   our   opinion   on   the   con
statements.
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Key Audit Matter(s)

Key  audit  matters  are  those  matters  are  those  matters  that,  in  our  professional
judgment,  were  of  most  significance  in  our  audit  of  the  consolidated  financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon,  and  we  do  not  provide  a  separate  opinion  on  these  matters.  We  have
determined   the   matter   described   below   to   be   the   key   audit   matters   to   be
communicated in our report.

NIL

Other Information

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the
other information.  The other information comprises the information included in the
Holding Company's Annual report but does not include the financial statements and
auditor' s reports thereon.

Our  opinion  on  the  consolidated  financial  statements  does  not  cover  the  other
information and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In   cormection   with   our   audit   of  the   consolidated   financial   statements,   our
responsibility  is  to  read  the  other  information  identified  above  when  it  becomes
available  and  in  doing  so,  consider  whether  the  other  information  is  materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Management's  and  Board  of Director's  Responsibilities  for  the  Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the
preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the
requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state of
affairs,  consolidated  profit/  loss  and  other  comprehensive  Income,  consolidated
statement  of  changes   in  equity   and  consolidated  cash  flows   of  the   Group  in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)  specified under Section  133  of the Act.  The



with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application
of  appropriate   accounting   policies;   making  judgments   and   estimates   that   are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and   completeness   of  the   accounting   records,   relevant   to   the   preparation   and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been
used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated fmancial statements by the
Management and Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated  financial  statements, the respective Management and
Board  of Directors  of the  companies  included  in  the  Group  are  responsible  for
assessing the ability of each company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable,  matters  related to  going  concern  and  using  the  going  concern basis  of
accounting  unless  the  respective  Board  of Directors  either  intends  to  liquidate  the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The  respective  Board  of Directors  of  the  companies  included  in  the  Group  are
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each company.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our  objectives  are  to  obtain  reasonable  assurance  about  whether  the  consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance  with  SAs  will  always  detect  a material  misstatement when  it  exists.
Misstatements   can   arise   from   fraud   or   error   and   are   considered   material   if,
individually  or  in  aggregate,  they  could  reasonably  be  expected  to  influence  the
economic  decisions  of  users  taken  on  the  basis  of  these  consolidated  financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throuchout the audit. We also:

•    Identify  and  assess  the  risks  of material  misstatement  of the  consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit



sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting  from  error,  as  fraud  may  involve  collusion,  forgery,  intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control.

•    Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design  audit  procedures  that  are  appropriate  in  the  circumstances.  Under
Section  143(3)  (i)  of the  Act,  we  are  also  responsible  for  expressing  our
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference  to  financial  statements  in place  and the  operating  effectiveness  of
such controls.

•    Evaluate    the    appropriateness    of    accounting    policies    used    and    the
reasonableness  of accounting  estimates  and related disclosures  made by the
Management and Board of Directors.

•    Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors
use  of the  going  concern basis  of accounting  in preparation  of consolidated
financial  statements  and,  based  on  the  audit  evidence  obtained,  whether  a
material  uncertainty  exists  related  to  events  or  conditions  that  may  cast
significant  doubt  on the  appropriateness  of this  assumption.  If we  conclude
that  a material  uncertainty  exists,  we  are  required to  draw  attention  in  our
auditor's   report   to   the   related   disclosures   in   the   consolidated   financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.  Our
conc-1usions  are  based  on the  audit  evidence  obtained up to  the  date  of our
auditor' s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

•    Evaluate  the  overall  presentation,  structure  and  content  of the  consolidated
financial  statements,  including the  disclosures,  and whether the consolidated
financial  statements  represent  the  underlying  transactions  and  events  in  a
manner that achieves for presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company
of which  we  are the  independent  auditors  regarding,  among  other matters,  the

planned  scope  and timing  of the  audit  and  significant  audit  findings,  including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We  also  provide those  charged with governance with  a  statement that we have
complied  with  relevant  ethical  requirements  regarding



communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From   the   matters   communicated   with   those   charged   with   governance,   we
determine  those  matters  that  were  of  most  significance  in  the  audit  of  the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit  matters.  We  describe  these  matters  in  our  auditor's  report  unless  law  or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances,  we  determine that  a matter  should  not be  communicated  in  our
report  because  the  adverse   consequences   of  doing  so  would  reasonably  be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

We   did   not   audit   the   financial   statements   of  subsidiaries.   These   financial
statements  have  been  audited  by  the  other  auditors  whose  reports  have  been
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements,  in  so  far  as  it  relates  to  the  amounts  and  disclosures  included  in
respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section
143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely
on the reports of the other auditors.

Our  opinion  on  the  consolidated  financial  statements,  and  on  other  Legal  and
Regulatory Requirements as mentioned below, is not modified, and in respect of
the above matters with respect to our reliance on the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.   As required by  the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (`the Order")
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the
Act,  we  give  in the  "Annexure  A"  a  statement  on the  matters  specified  in

paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2.   As required by Section  143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable,
that:



a.   We  have  sought  and  obtained  all  the  information  and  explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the

puaposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

b.   In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to

preparation  of  the  aforesaid  consolidated  financial  statements  have
been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c.   The  consolidated  balance  sheet,  the  consolidated  statement  of profit
and  loss  (including  other  comprehensive  income),  the  consolidated
statement of charges  in equity  and the  consolidated statement of cash
flows  dealt  with  by  this  Report  are  in  agreement  with  the  relevant
books  of account  maintained  for  the  purpose  of preparation  of the
consolidated financial statements.

d.   In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply
with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e.   On the basis of the written representations received from the directors
of the Holding Company as on 31  March 2024 taken on record by the
Board of Directors of the Holding Company and on the basis of written
representation   received   by   the   management   from   directors   of  its
subsidiaries  which  are  incorporated  in India,  none  of the  directors  of
the  Group  companies  incorporated  in  India  is  disqualified  as  on  31
March  2024  from  being  appointed  as  a  director  in  terms  of Section
164(2) of the Act.

f.    With  respect  to  the  adequacy  of the  internal  financial  controls  with
relevance  to  financial  statements  of  the  Holding  Company  and  its
subsidiary    companies    incorporated    in    India    and    the    operating
effectiveness   of   such   controls,   refer   to   our   separate   Report   in
"Annexure 8".

8.        With  respect  to  the  other matters  to  be  included  in  the  Auditor's  Report  in
accordance with Rule  11  of the Companies (Audit and Auditors



in  our  opinion  and  to  the  best  of  our  information  and  according  to  the
explanation given to us:

a.   The  consolidated  financial   statements   disclose  the  impact  of  pending
litigations  as  at  31  March  2024  on  the  consolidated  financial  statements

position   of  the   Group   Refer  Note   20   to   the   consolidated   financial
statements.

b.   The  Group  did  not  have  any  material  foreseeable  losses  on  long  term
contracts  including  derivative  contracts  during the year  ended  31  March
2024.

c.   There has been no delay in transferring amounts to the lnvestor Education
and Protection Fund by the  Holding Company  during the year ended  31
March 2024. There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to
the  Investor Education  and Protection Fund by the  subsidiary  companies
incorporated in India during the year ended 31 March 2024.

d.   (i)  The management of the Holding Company represented that, to the best
of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned
or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources  or  kind  of  funds)  by  the  Holding  Company  or  any  of  its
subsidiary companies incorporated in India to or in any other person(s)
or  entity(ies),  including  foreign  entities  ("Intermediaries"),  with  the
understanding,   whether  recorded  in  writing   or  otherwise,  that  the
Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Holding Company  or any of its  subsidiary  companies  incoaporated in
India ("Ultimate Beneficiaries")  or provide any guarantee,  security  or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii)       The management of the Holding company represented that, to the best
of their  knowledge  and  belief,  no  funds  have  been  received  by  the
Holding Company  or any  of its  subsidiary  companies  incorporated in
India   from   any   person(s)   or   entity(ies),   including   foreigE

("Funding   Parties"),   with   the   understanding, whethe



writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of its subsidiary
companies  incorporated  in  India  shall  directly  or  indirectly,  lend  or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by  or  on  behalf of the  Funding  Parties  ("Ultimate  Beneficiaries")  or

provide  any  guarantee,  security  or the  like  on behalf of the  Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(iii)      Based  on  the  audit  procedures  performed  that  have  been  considered
reasonable and appropriate in the  circumstances, nothing has  come to
our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under
sub  clause  (i)  and  (ii)  of Rule  11(e),  as  provided  under  (i)  and  (ii)
above, contain any material misstatement.

e.         No dividend has been disclosed or paid during the year by the group.

Based on our examination which included test checks, as stated by the
statutory  auditor  of  the  subsidiary   in  its   audit  report  the  holding
company and its subsidiary company,  incorporated in India have used
an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has
a  feature  of recording  audit trail  (edit  log)  facility  and the  sane  has
operated throughout the year  for  all  relevant transactions  recorded  in
the software.

Further,  during  the  course  of our  audit  we  did not  come  across  any
instance of audit trail (edit log) feature being tampered with.

C.        With  respect  to  the  matter  to  be  included  in  the  Auditor's  Report  under
Section 197(16) of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to  us,  the  remuneration paid  during the  current year by  the  Holding
Company to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act.  The remuneration paid to any director by the Holding
Company and subsidiary Company is not excess of the limit laid down



under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not

prescribed  other  details  under  Section  197(16)  of the  Act  which  are
required to be commented upon by us.

Place:  Delhi
Date:  tot 05. from
UDIN: " u \ 655 2-6KA A N|? 8§ l Membership No. 416552



ANNEXURE A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated
Financial  Statements  of Bansal  Wire  Industries  Limited  for  the  year
ended 31st March 2024.

(Referred  to  in  paragraph  1  under  `Report  on  Other Legal  and  Regulatory
Requirements' section of our report of even date).

(xxi)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us and also by referring to the report furnished by the statutory auditor of
the subsidiary company, the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 of the
Holding  Company  and  subsidiary  company  did not  include  any  unfavorable
answers  or  qualiflcations  or  adverse  remarks  except  as  per  clause  (vii)  as
armexed.

For Prateek Gupta
Chartered A
FRN: 01if

place:  Delhi
Date:  ro. C>5.totry
UDIN:"u\655tJbKAANIT2b-\

Prateek
Partner
Membership No. 416552



ANNEXURE 8 to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated
Financial  Statements  of Bansal  Wire  Industries  Limited  for  the  year
ended 3lst March 2024.

Report  on  the  internal  financial  corltrols  with  refermce  to  the  aforesaid
consolidated financial statements under clause (i) or Sub-section 3  of Section
143 of the Act.

(Referred to in paragraph 2A(g) under `Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' section of our report of even date)

Opinion

In  conjunction  with  our  audit  of the  consolidated  financial  statements  of
Bansal   Wire  Industries  Limited  (hereinafter  referred  to  as   `the  Holding
Company") as of and for the year ended 31  March 2024, we have audited the
internal   financial   controls   with  reference   to   financial   statements   of  the
Holding  Company   and  such  companies   incorporated   in  India  under  the
Companies Act 2013, which are its subsidiary companies, as of that date.

In  our  opinion,  the  Holding  Company  and  such  companies  incorporated  in
India  which  are  its  subsidiary  companies,  have,   in  all  material  respects,
adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and
such  internal  financial  controls  were  operating  effectively  as  at  31  March
2024,  based  on  the  intemal  financial  controls  with  reference  to  financial
statements  criteria  established  by  such  companies  considering  the  essential
components of such internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the "Guidance Note")

Management's  and  Board  of  Director's  Responsibilities  for  Internal
Financial Controls

The  respective  Company's  Management  and  the  Board  of  Directors  are



established by the respective company  considering the essential  components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include
the  design,  implementation  and  maintenance  of adequate  internal  financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct  of  its  business,  including  adherence  to  the  respective  company's

policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor' s Responsibility

Our responsibility  is to  express  an opinion  on the  internal  financial  controls
with reference to  financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our
audit  in  accordance  with  the  Guidance Note  and  the  Standard  on Auditing

prescribed  under  Section  143(10)  of the  Act,  to  the  extent  applicable  to  an
audit  of  internal  financial  controls  with  reference  to  financial  statements.
Those Standard and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements  and plan and perform the audit to  obtain reasonable  assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements  were  established  and  maintained  and  if  such  controls  operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit  invoice  performing procedures to  obtain  audit  evidence  about the
adequacy   of  the   internal   financial   controls   with   reference   to   financial
statements  and  their  operating  effectiveness.  Our  audit  of internal  financial
controls   with   reference   to   financial   statements   included   obtaining   an
understanding   of  internal   financial   controls   with   reference   to   financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including   the   assessment   of  the   risks   of  material   misstatement   of  the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We  believe  that  the   audit  evidence  we  have  obtained  is   sufficient  and



Meaning  of  internal  Financial  Controls  with  Reference  to  Financial
Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external

purposes  in  accordance  with  generally  accepted  accounting  principles.  A
company's  intemal  financial  controls  with reference to  financial  statements
include those policies  and procedures that (1)  pertain to the maintenance  of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions
and   dispositions   of  the   assets   of  the   company,   (2)   provide   reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial   statements   in   accordance   with   generally   accepted   accounting

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only  in  accordance  with  authorizations  of management and  directors  of the
company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection  of unauthorized  acquisition,  use,  or  disposition  of the  company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent  Limitations  of Internal  Financial  Controls  with  Reference  to
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference
to  financial  statements,  including  the  possibility  of  collusion  or  improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud
may  occur  and  not  be  detected.  Also,  projections  of any  evaluation  of the
internal  financial  controls  with  reference  to  financial  statements  to  future

periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference
to   financial   statements   may   become   inadequate   because   of  changes   in
conditions,  or that the  degree  of compliance with the policies  or procedures
may deteriorate.



Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section  143(3)(i)  of the Act on the adequacy and
operating`  effectiveness   of  the   internal   financial   controls   over   financial
reporting insofar as it relates to subsidiary companies, which are incorporated
in India, is based solely on the corresponding reports of the other auditors of
subsidiary company.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Place:  Delhi
Date:  ro`05.totry
UD[N:quLt`65S2.foK`AAN£Tbb.\ Membership No. 416552
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Bansal Wire Industries Limited

CIN:  U31300DL 1985PLC022737
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31  March 2024
(All amounts are in  lNR Million,  unless otherwise stated)

Particulars                                                                            Notes
Asat

31  March 2024

ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a)      Property, plant and equipment
(b)      Capital work in progress
(c)       Intangible assets
(d)      Financial assets

(i)  Investments
(ii) Other Bank balances
(iii) Other financial assets

(e)      Other non-current assets

Cu rrent assets
(a)      Inventories

(b)      Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above

(iv) Other financial assets
(c)      Other current assets

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

(a)      Equity share capital
(b)      Otherequity
Equity attributable to the owners of the company
Non€ontrolling Interest

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

(a)       Financial  Liabilities
Borrowings

(b)      Provisions

(c) Deferred tax Liabilities (net

2,293.06
2,118.64

0.92

10.76

12.27

86 . 1 9

396.63

4,918.47

3,136.23

3,579.27
18.13

26 . 1 5

31.15

930.69
7,721.63

12'640.10

&R;J .2:I

3,586.43

4'223.70
387.70

4,611.40

3,041.17

51.12

121.73

3,214.02



Current liabilities

(a)        Financial  Liabilities

(i)   Borrowings

(ii) Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro

enterprises and small enterprises; and
Total outstanding dues of creditors other

than micro enterprise and small enterprises

(iii)  Other financial  liabilities

(b)       Provisons

(c)        Currenttax liabilities  (net)

(d)       Other current liabilities

Total Equity and  Liabilities

Summary of material accounting policies 1-2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date

place:  Delhi
Date:90`05'ho"

uDINtqul|\6552Jb`LA^WT135l

3,770.26

59.15

532.21

316.12

1 1 . 04

36.72

89.19

4,814.69

8,028.70

12,640.10

On behalf of the Board of Directors of

FOR BANSAL WIRE INDUSTRIES LllvIITED

#Gupta)
Chairman and
Whole time Director
DIN:  00255850

ELiEEE

EiEEEi
(Pranav Bansal)
Managing  Director

and Chief Executive
Officer

DIN:  06648163

(Ghanshyam Das Gujrati)
Chief Financial Officer

PAN: ACMPG8015B

sG*,t,ha
Com pany Secretary

and Compliance
officer

M.No. A29247



v.-`=-`.a.-       a Bansat Wire industries Liffiited
CIN:  U31300DL 1985PLC022737

Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts are in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars                                                                                   Notes
Year ended

31  March 2024

INCOME
Revenue from operations
Other income
Total income

EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed
Changes in inventories of finished goods,
stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

Employee benefit expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses
Total expenses

Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and fax

Exceptional Items Profit/(Loss)

Profit/ (loss) before tax

Tax expense
Current tax
MAT Credit Adjusted

Earlier year tax
Deffered tax
Total Tax expense

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Other comprehensive incomes
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability

Remeasurement gain/ (loss) on investment
Income tax effect on above

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

36

37

24,660.31
48.55

24,708.86

20,166.55

(346.56)

735.44

288.07

134.52

2,660.88

23,638.90

1,069.96

276.72

31.02

35.01

6.40
349.16

752.42



Net Profit attributable to :
Owners of the Company
Non-Controlling  Interest

Other Comprehensive Income attributable to :
Owners of the Company
Non-Controlling Interest

Total Comprehensive Income attribufable to :
Owners of the Company
Non-Controlling Interest

Earnings/ (Loss) per share of € 5 each (PY E 10 each)
Basic and diluted earning per share

Summary of material accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated financial statements.

Place: Delhi
Date: 2ro. 05 ' toqu

736.16

16.26

(3.82)
0.15

732.34

16.41

5.78

On behalf of the Board of Directors of
FOR BANSAL WIRE INDUSTRIES LIIvllTED

--,----------          i_>2Z;

(Arun Gupta)                  (Pranav Bansal)
Chairman and Whole   Managing Director and
time Director

][mEEEEE±

(Ghanshyam Das
Gujrati)
Chief Financial
Officer

PAN: ACMPG80158

Chief Executive Officer

DIN:  06648163

sGri,}wh
Company Secretary and

Compliance officer

M.No. A29247



5ee   Bansal wire Industries Linited
CIN:  U31300DL  1985PLC022737
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended 31  March 2024
(All amounts are in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars
Year ended

31  March 2024

A  Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Loss/(Profit) on Sale Of Fixed Asset
Profit on Sale of Share
Interest income on fixed deposits
I nterest expenses
Operating loss before working capital changes:

Movement in working capital
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories
Decrease/(Increase) in trade receivables
Decrease/(Increase) in other fjnancjal assets
Decrease/(increase) in other current assets

(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables
Increase  in  other financial  liabilities

(Decrease)/increase in other current and  non-current liabilities
(Decrease)/Increase in provisions
Cash utilised in operating activities
Income taxes paid
Net cash utilised in operating activities (A)

8  Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property,  plant and equipment and

(Increase)/decrease in advance for capital goods
Sale of property,  plant and equipment and
Profit Qn Sale of Share
Increase/Decrease in  Investment in Shares
Redemption of/(investment in) deposits with banks (net)
Interest received on bank deposits
Net cash utilised in investing activities (8)

C  Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from Issuing Equity Share
Proceeds from borrowings
Interest paid
Net cash generated from financjng activities (C)

1,101.58

134.52

(20.67)
(10.94)

(2.04)
288.07
490.50

(3,136.23)

(3,579.27)

(117.34)

(930.69)
591.36

316.12

89.19
62 . 1 6

(5,214.20)

(190.71)

(5.404.91)

(4,707.38)
(396.63)
180.92

10.94

(10.76)

(38.42)
2.04

3,858.98
6,811.42

288.07
10.382.34

•'ve   #
*



Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 12)

a.  Cash and cash equivalents include (refer note 12):
Cash on hand
Balances with banks in current accounts

Asat
31  March 2024

16.59
1.55

b.  The  above  cash  flow  statement  has  been  prepared  under  the  "Indirect  Method"  as  set  out  in  Indian
Accounting Standard 7 (lnd AS-7) on "Statement of Cash Flows".

c.  Since this  is the  initial year of consolidation,  the cash flow statement has  been  prepared considering the
opening balance as zero,  hence, comparative figures are not applicable.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

`-`.``     `:``.:.:`'           `

Membership No..416552

place: Delhi
Date:fro`o5.rotry

On behalf of the Board of Directors of
FOR BANSAL WIRE INDUSTRIES LIMITED

`.\,

her;:pat:twho,et,mS#
Director

DIN:  00255850

ELiE
(Ghanshyam Das Gujrati)
Chief Financial Officer
PAN: ACMPG80158

Chief Executive Officer

DIN:  06648163

=ulJL, Wh
(Sumit Gupta)
Company Secretary
and Compliance officer
M.No. A29247
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Eec   Bausai wire Industhes Linited
CIN: U31300DL 1985PLC022737

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the \/ear ended 31st March 2024

NOTE."1"

NOTE-"a.'

2.1   a)

(i)

CORPORATE  INFORMATloN
The  consolidated  financial  statements  comprise  of  financial  statements  of  Bansal
Wire  Industries  Limited  (the  company)  and  its  subsidiary  (  Bansal  Steel  &  Power
Limited) for the Year ended   31  March 2024.
TThe  company  is a  public company domiciled  in  India  and  is  incorporated  under the

provisions  of the  Companies  Act,  1956.   The  registered  office  of the  company  is
located   in   Delhi,   India  and  manufacturing   units  are   situated   in   Ghaziabad   and
Gautambuddha Nagar,  Uttar Pradesh,  India.
Bansal  Steel  &  Power  Limited(  subsidiary  company)  is a  public company domiciled
in  India and  is incorporated  under the  provisions of the  Companies Act,1956.   The
registered  office of the company is located  in  Delhi,  India and manufacturing  unit is
situated at Bahadurgarh,  Haryana,  India.
The Group is principally engaged in the business of manufacturing and sale of wires
of multiple varieties including  mild  steel,  stainless steel,  high  carbon etc.,  of various
categories]   shapes   and   sises   used   in   the   Automobile,   Infrastructure,   Fastner,
Kitchen-ware and other industries.

BASIS QF PREPARATloN OF FINAl\ICIAL STATERAENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis Of preparation and Compliance with lnd AS
The  financial  statements  of the  Company  comply with  and  have  been  prepared  in
accordance   with    Indian    Accounting    Standards    (lnd    AS)    notified    under   the
Companies  (Indian Accounting  Standards)  Rules,  2015  (as  amended)  as amended
by  the  Companies  (Indian  Accounting  Standards)  (Amendment)  Rules,  2016  and
the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,  2013 ("the Act").

(jl)      The financial statements of the Company comply in all material aspects with Indian
Accounting  Standards  ('lnd AS') notified  under Section  133  of the  Companies Act,
2013   read   with    Companies   (Indian   Accounting    Standards)    Rules,    2015   (as
amended).

b)       Basjsof measurement
The  lnd  AS  Financial  Statements  have  been  prepared  on  a  going  concern  basis
using  historical cost convention and on an  accrual  method of accounting,  except for
certain   financial   assets   and   liabilities,   including   derivative   financial   instruments
which have been measured at fair value and defined benefit plans which have been
measured at actuarial valuation as required  by relevant lnd AS.

c)      Operating cycle of the company
Operating  cycle  of the  Company  is the time  between  the  acquisition  of assets  for

processing  and their realisation  in cash  and cash  equivalents.  Based  on the  nature
of  products  and  services  and  the  time   between  the  acquisitions  of  assets  for

processing  and  their  realisation  in  cash  and  cash  equivalents,  the  company  has
ascertained operating cycle of 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current
classification of assets and  liabilities
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d)       Functional and presentation currency and rounding off
These   lnd  AS  Financial  Statements  are  prepared   in   Indian  Rupee  which  js  the
Company's  functional  currency.  All  financial   information   are  presented   in   Million
rupees and   has been rounded off to the nearest  Million(Upto two decimals),  unless
otherwise stated. Values less than  10,000/-are appearing as "0.00"

e)      Foreign currency transactions
Items  included  in the financial  statements of the company are measured using the
ourrency of the primary economic environment jn which the company operates (`the
functional  currency').  The financial  statements are  presented  in  Indian  rupee  (lNR),

which is Bansal Wire Industries Limited's functional and presentation currency.
The  transactions  in  the  currency  other  than  lNR  are  recognised  at  the  rates  of
exchange  prevailing  at  the  dates  of  the  transactions.  At  the  end  of  the  reporting

period,  monetary  items  denominated  in  foreign  currencies  are  retranslated  at  the
rates prevail.ing at that date.
Non   monetary   items  that   are   measured   in   terms   of  historical   cost   in    foreign

currency are not retranslated.
Exchange  Difference on  monetary  items  are  recognised  jn  Statement of Profit and
Loss in the year they arise.

f)        Use of estimates and critical accounting judgements
The   preparation   of  the  financial   statements   in   conformity  with   lnd  AS  requires

management  to   make  judgements,   estimates   and   assumptions   that  affect  the
application  of  accounting  policies  and  the  reported  amounts  of  assets,  liabilities,

income,  expenses and disclosures of contingent assets and lI.abilities at the date of

these financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for
the years presented.  Actual  results  may  differ from  these estimates  under different
assumptions  and  conditions.  Estimates  and  underlying  assumptions  are  reviewed

on  an  ongoing   basis.   Revisions  to  accounting  estimates  are    recognised   in  the

period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.

2.2  Basis of Consolidation

The  consolidated   financial   statements   comprise  the  financial   statements  of  the
company  and  its  subsidiaries  as  at  March  31,  2024.  Control  is  achieved  when  the
group  is  exposed,  or  has  rights,  to  variable  returns  from  its  involvement  with  the
investee  and  has  the  abillity  to  affect  those  returns  through  its  power  over  the
investee.   Subsidiaries  are  fully  consolidated   from   the  date  on  which   control   is
transferred  to  the  Group  Profit/(Loss)  and  other  comprehensive  income  ('OCI')  of
subsidiary  acquired  or  disposed  off  during  the  period  are  recogn}sed  from  the
effective   date   of   disposal,   as   applicable.   The   consolidated   subsidiary   have   a
consistent reporting date of 31  March 2024

Consolidated  financial  statements   are  prepared  using  uniform  accounting  policies
for  like  trasactions  and  other  events  in  similar  circumtances.   If  a  member  of  the

group   uses   accounting   policies   other  than   those   adopted   in   the   consolidated
financial   statements   for   like   transactions   and   events   in   similar   circumtances,
appropriate  adjustments  are  made to  that group  member's  financial  statements  in
preparing   the   consolidated   financial   statements   to   ensure   conformity   with   the
group`s accounting policies.
The  financial  statements  of all  entities  used  for  the  purpose  of consolidetion  are
drawn  up to same  reporting  date as that of the parent company,  i.e.  Financial Year
ended  31  March 2024.
In  the  preparing  the  consolidated  financial   statements,  the  group  has  used  the
following key consolidation procedures:

r>   .ts



1.  The  group  has  combined  the  standalone  financial  statements  of the  parent  and
its   subsidiary   line   by   line   adding   together   like   item   of  assets,   liabilities,   equity,
income and expenses.  For this purpose,  income and expenses of the subsidiary are
based on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements as at the
acquisition date.

2.  Offset  (eliminate)  the  carrying  amount  of the  parent's  Investment  in  subsidiary
and  the  parentts  portion   of  equity  of  subsidiary  and   eliminate  in  full   intra-group
assets   and   ljabjljties,   equity,    income,    expenses   and   cash   flows   relating   to
transactions  between  entities  of  the  group.   Profit  &  Losses  resulting  from  intra-

group  transactions  that  are   recognised   in   assets,   such   as  inventory  and  fixed
assets,  are eliminated  in full.

3.  Profit  or  loss  and  each  component  of  other  comprehensive  income  (Ocl)  are
attributed to the equity  halders of the  parent of the  group and to the non-controlling
interests,  even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a defrcit balance.
When  necessary,  adjustments are  made to the financial  statements  of subsjdaries
to  bring  their  accounting  policies  into  line  with  the  Group's  accounting  policies.  All

intra-group  assets  and  liabilities,  equity,  income,  expenses  and  cash  flows  relating
to   transactions    between    members    of   the    Group    are    eliminated    in   full    on
consideration.

2.3  MATERIAL  ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)      Business combination
The Group applies the acquisition  method I.n accounting for business  combinations.
The  consideration  transferred  by  the  Group  to  obtain  control  of  the  subsidiary  is
calculated  as  the  sum   of  the  acquisition-date  fair  values  of  assets  transferred,
liabilities  incurred  and  the  equity  interests  issued  by  the  Group.  Acquisition  costs
are expensed off as incurred.
Identifiable  assets  acquired  and  liabilities  and  contingent  liabilities  assumed  in  a
business combination are measured jnjtjally at their acquisttion-date fair values.
If  the  fair  value  of  the  jdentifiable  assets  acquired  and  liabjljtjes  assumed  js  jn
excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, then the amount is recognised in
other  comprehensive  income   (Ocl)   and   accumulated   in  other  equity  as  capital
reserve,   However,   if  there  is  no  clear  evidence  of  bargain  purchase,  the  entity
recognises  the  gain  directly  in  other  equity  as  capital  reserve,  without  routing  the
same through Ocl.

b)      Non controlling Interest
Non-contromng   interests,   presented  as  part  of  equity,represent  the  portion  of  a
subsidiary's  statement  of  profit  and  loss  and  net  assets  that  is  not  held  by  the
Group.    Consolidated   Statement   of   Profit   and   Loss   balance   (including   other
comprehensive  income  (`Ocl'))  are  attributed  to  the  equity  holders  of  the  parent
company    and    to    the    noncontrolling    interests,    even    if   this    results    in    the
noncontrolling    interests    having   a   deficit   balance.    The    Group   attributes   total
comprehensive income or loss of the subsidiaries between the owners of the parent
and the non-controlling interests based on their respective ownership interests.
Ncl  are  measured  at  their  proportionate  share  Of the  acquiree's  net  identifiable
assets at the date of acquisition.

c)      Revenue Recognition
The  Group  derives  revenues  primarily  from  sale  of  manufactured  goods,  traded

goods and related services.
Revenue  is  recognized  on  satisfaction  of  performance  obligation  upon  transfer  of
control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration  the  company  expects  to  receive  in  exchange  for  those  products  or
services.
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The  Performance  Obligations  in  our  contracts  are  fulfilled  at the  time  of dispatch,

delivery or upon formal customer acceptance depending on customer terms.
Revenue from the sale of goods is measured on the basis of contracted price net of

returns,   Liquidation  damage,  trade  discount  &  volume  rebates  and  any  taxes  or

duties collected on behalf of the Government such as goods and services tax, etc.
Revenue  is  recognised to  the  extent that it is  probable that the  economic benefits
will  flow  to  the  Group  and  the  revenue  can  be  reliably  measured,  regardless  of
when the payment is being made.
Revenue  is  measured  at the fair value  of the  consideration  received  or  receivable,

taking into account contractually defined terms of payment.
Revenue  from  a  contract  to  provide  services  is  recognised  based  on  terms  of
agreements/arrangements with the customers as the service is performed and there
are no unfulfilled  performance obligations.

Sale of goods and Rendering of Services
Sale of goods
Revenue   from   sale   of   goods   is   measured   at   the   fair   market   value   of   the

consideration   received   or   receivable,   taking   into   account   contractually   defined

terms   of   payment   and   excluding   taxes   or   duties   collected   on   behalf   of   the

government.  Sales are net of rebates and price concessions.  Sales in the domestic
market  are  recognized  at the  time  of dispatch  of  materials  to  the  buyers  including

the cases where delivery documents are endorsed in favour of the buyers.

Rendering of Services
Revenue from  sale of services  is recognised  upon the rendering of services and  is
recognised net of GST.

d)      Otherlncome
Interest income
Interest  income   is  included   in  other  income  in  the  statement  of  profit  and  loss.
Interest  income  is  recognjsed  on  a  time  propohion  basis  taking  into  account the
amount  outstanding  and  the  applicable  interest  rate  when  there  is  a  reasonable
certainty as to realisation.

Dividends
Dividends  are  recognised  in  profit  or  loss  when  the  right  to  receive  payment  is

established,  it  is  probable  that the  economic  benefits  associated  with  the  dividend

will  flow to  the  Group,  and  the  amount  of the  dividend  can  be  measured  reliably.

This applies  even  if they are  paid out of pre-acquisition  profits,  unless the dividend

clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

e)        Property, plant and equipment
The   initial  cost  of  property,   plant  and  equipment  comprises  its  purchase   price,
including  import  duties  and  non  refundable  purchase  taxes,  attributable  borrowing
cost   and   any   other   directly   attributable   costs   of  bringing   an   asset  to  working
condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure  incurred  after  the  property,  plant  and  equipment  have  been  put  into
operation,    such   as   repairs   and   maintenance,   are   normally   ctiarged   to   the
statements of profit and loss jn the period in which the costs are incurred.
Major  inspection  and  overhaul  expenditure  is  capitalized  if the  recognition  criteria
are met.
When   significant   parts  of  plant  and   equipment  are   required   to   be   replaced   at

intervals,  the  Company  depreciates  them  separately  based  on  their specific useful
lives.  Likewise, when a major inspection is performed and overhaul cost is incurred,

its  cost  is  recognised   in  the  carrying  amount  of  the  plant  and  equipment  as  a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance
costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.        .
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An item of property,  plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised
is  derecognised  upon  disposal  or when  no  future  economic  benefits  are  expected
from  its  use  or  disposal.  Any  gain  or  loss  arising  on  derecognition  of  the  asset

(calculated  as  the  difference  between  the  net disposal  proceeds  and  the  carrying
amount of the asset)  is included  in the statement of profit and  loss, when the asset
is derecognised.
The  residual  values,  useful  life  and  methods  of depreciation  of property,  plant and
equipment are  reviewed  at  each  financial  year end  and  adjusted  prospectively,  if
appropriate.
The company has elected to continue with the carrying amount of its Property,  plant
and  Equipment  as  recognised  in  the  financial  statements  on  transition  to  lnd  AS,
measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date
of transition.

i)         Capital work in progress
Assets  in  the  course  of  construction  are  cap-itarlzed  in  capital  work  -In  progress
account.  AI the point when an asset is capable of operating in the manner intended
by management,  the cost of construction  is transferred to the appropriate category
of property,  plant  and  equipment.  Costs  associated  with  the  commissioning  of an
asset are capitalised when the asset is available for use but incapable of operating
at  normal  levels  until  the  period  of commissioning  has  been  completed.  Revenue

generated   from   production   during   the  trial   period   is  credited   to   capital   work  in
progress.

ii)        Depreciation
Assets  in  the  course  of  development  or  construction  and  freehold  land  are  not
depreciated.    Other   property,    plant   and   equipment   are   stated    at   cost   less
accumulated     depreciation     and    any     provision    for    impairment.     Depreciation
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
Depreciation  is calculated on the depreciable amount, which  is the cost of an asset
less its residual value.
Pursuant   to   the    enactment    of   the    Companies    Act,2013("the    Act")    and    its
appljcabiljty  for  accounting  periods  commencing  from  Aprjl  1,  2014  ttie  company
has,   wherever  required  reassessed  the  useful  life  of  its  fixed  assets  and  has
computed    depreciation   with    reference   to   the    useful    life    of   the   assets    as
recommended in schedule 11 of the Act.
Depreciation on tangible fixed assets has been  provided  on the straight-line method
as  per the  useful  life  prescribed  in  Schedule  11  to  the  Companies Act,2013,  except
for   Tangible   Assets   for   which   certificate   of  the   useful   life   is   taken   from   the
competent person in that field
Individual  items of assets costing  upto Rs.  5,000 are fully depreciated  in the year of
acquisition.
Leasehold  improvements  are  depreciated  over the  unexpired  period  of respective
leases or useful life whichever is shorter.
The  management believes that these estimated  useful  lives are realistic and reflect

fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.
Major  inspection  and  overhaul  costs  are  depreciated  over the  estimated  life  of the
economic  benefit  derived  from  such  cost.  The  carrying  amount  of  the  remaining
previous  overhaul  cost  is  charged  to  the  statement  of  profit  and  loss  if  the  next
overhaul  js  undertaken  earlier  than  the  previously  estimated  life  of the  economic
benefit.
When  significant  spare  parts  of  an  item  of  property,   plant  and  equipment  have
different useful  lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components)
of property,  plant and equipment.

f)       lntangibleAssets
Recognition and initial measurement
Intangible  assets  acquired  separately  are  measured  on  initial  recognition  at  cost.
Follow[ng    initial   recognition,    intangible   assets   are   carried   at   cost   less   any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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Intangible  Assets  with  finite  lives  are  amortized  on  a  straight-line  basis  over  the

estimated  useful  economic life.  The amortization  expense on  intangible assets with
finite lives is recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
Amortization  of intangible  assets  such  as  softwares  is  computed  on  a  straight-line
basis, at the rates representing estimated useful life of up to 3 years.

g)      Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provisions    represent   liabilities   for   which   the   amount   or   timing    is   uncertain.
Provisions  are  recognized  when  the  company  has  a  present  obligation  (legal  or
constructive),   as  a   result  of  past  events,   and   it  is   probable  that  an  outflow  of
resources,   that   can   be   reliably   estimated,   will   be   required   to   settle   such   an
Obligation.

If the  effect  of the  time  value  of  money  is  material,  provisions  are  determined  by
discounting   the   expected   future   cash   flows   to   net   present   value   using   an
appropriate  pre-tax  discount rate that  reflects  current  market  assessments  of the
time   value   of  money   and,   where   appropriate,   the   risks   specific  to  the   liability.
Unwinding  of  the  discount  is  recognized  in  the  statement  of  profit  and  loss  as  a
finance  cost.  Provisions  are  reviewed  at  each  reporting  date  and  are  adjusted  to
reflect the current best estimate.
A  contingent  liability  is  a  possible  obligation  that  arises  from  past  events  whose
existence  will  be  confirmed  by  the  occurrence  or  non  occurrence  of one  or  more
uncertain  future events  beyond the control  of the Group or a present obligation that
is  not  recognised  because  it  is  not  probable  that  an  outflow  of  resources  will  be
required  to  settle  the  obligation.  A contingent  liability  also  arises  in  extremely  rare
cases  where  there  js  a  liability  that  cannot  be  recognised  because  it  cannot  be
measured reljably.  The Group does rtot recognize a contingent liability but discloses
its existence in the financial statements.

Contingent  assets  are  not  recognised  but  disclosed  in  the  financial  statements
when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits
Employee   benefits  payable  wholly  within  twelve   months   of  receiving   employee
services  are  classified  as  short-term  employee  benefits.   These  benefits  include
salaries and wages,  performance incentives and compensated absences which are
expected  to  occur  in  next twelve  months.  The  undiscounted  amount  of short-term
employee  benefits to  be paid  in  exchange  for employee  services  is  recognised  as
an expense as the related service is rendered by employees.
Liabilities for wages and salaries,  including non-monetary benefits that are expected
to  be  setled  wholly  within  12  months  after  the  end  of  the  period  in  which  the
employees  render  the  related   service  are  recognized   in   respect  of  employees'
services  up  to  the  end  of the  reporting  period  and  are  measured  at the  amounts
expected to  be incurred when the liabilities are settled.  The  liabilities are presented
as current employee dues payable in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Defined contribution plan (Post Employment benefits)
A  defined  contribution  such  as  Provident  Fund  etc,  are  charged  to  consolidated
statement of profit & loss as incurred.

ii)        Defined post-Employment   benefits

Post employment and other long-term  benefits are recognized as an expense in the
consolidated  statement of Profit and  Loss of the year in which the employees have
rendered  services.  The  Expense  is  recognized  at the  present value of the amount
payable  determined  using  actuarial   valuation  technique.  Actual  gain  and  losses  in
respect  of   post  employment  and  other  long  term  benefits  are  recognized   in  the
consolidated statement of Profit and Loss.
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Payments  to  defined    contribution   retirement  benefits  schemes  are  charged  as

expenses as and when  they fall  due.  Actuarial  gain / loss pertaining to  gratuity and

post  separation  benefits  are  accounted  for  as  Ocl.  All  remaining  components  of
costs are accounted for in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

I)       GovemmentGrants

Government grants are not recognised  until there is reasonable assurance that the
Company wjll  comply wjth  the condjtions attached to them  and  that the grants will
be received.  Government grants are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
on   a   systematic   basis   over   the   years   in   which   the   Company   recognises   as
expenses  the  related  costs  for  which  the  grants  are  intended  to  compensate  or
when  performance obligations are met. The benefit of a government loan at a below-
market   rate   of   interest   and   effect   of  this   favorable   interest   is   treated   as   a

government  grant.  The  Loan  or assistance  is  initially  recognised  at fair value  and
the  government  grant  is  measured  as  the  difference  between  proceeds  received
and   the   fair  value   of  the   loan   based   on   prevailing   market   interest   rates   and
recognised  to  the  Statement  of  profit  and  loss  immediately  on  fulfillment  of  the

performance obligations.  The loan  is subsequently measured as per the accounting
policy applicable to financial  liabilities.

j)       Earningspershare
Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings  per share is calculated  by dividing the profit attributable to owners of
the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the  financial  year,  adjusted  share  split,  bonus  issue,   bonus  element  in  the  right
issue to existing shareholders.
Diluted earnings per share
Diluted  earnings  per  share  adjusts  the  figures  used  in  the  determination  of  basic
earnings  per  share to take  into  account the  after income tax effect of interest and
other  financing   costs   associated   with   dilutive   potential   equity   shares,   and   the
weighted   average   number   of  addjtional   equity   shares   that  would   have   been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive potentiaJ equity shares.

k)      Taxes
Current income tax
Current  income tax assets  and  liabilities  are  measured  at the amount expected to
be  recovered  from  or  paid  to  the  taxation  authorities.  The  tax  rates  and  tax  laws
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at
the reporting date.
Current income tax relating to  items recognised outside the statement of profit and
loss  is  recognised  either  in  other comprehensive  income  or  in  eqiiity.  Current tax
items  are  recognjsed  in  correlation  to  the  underlying  transaction  either  in  Ocl  or
directly  in  equity.   Management  periodically  evaluates   positions  taken  in  the  tax

returns with  respect to  situations  in  which  applicable tax  regulations  are  subject to

interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred   tax   is   provided   using   the   liability   method   on   temporary   differences
between  the  tax  bases  of  assets  and  ljabiljtjes  and  their  carrying  amounts  for
financial   reporting   purposes   at   the   reporting   date,    Deferred   tax   liabilities   are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences,  except when  it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred  tax  assets  are  recognised  for  all  deductible  temporary  differences,  the
carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.  Deferred tax assets
are  recognised  to  the  extent that  it  is  probable  that  taxable  profit  will  be  available
against  which   the   deductible   temporary   differences,   and   the   carry   forward   of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.
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The carrying  amount of deferred tax assets  is  reviewed  at each  reporting  date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will  be
available  to  allow all  or  part of the  deferred  tax asset to  be  utilised.  Unrecognised
deferred tax assets  are re-assessed  at each  reporting date and are  recognised to
the  extent  that  it  has  become  probable  that  future  taxable  profits  w"I  allow  the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the statement of profit and loss is
recognised either in other comprehensive income or in equity.
Deferred  tax  assets  and  deferred  tax  liabilities  are  offset  if a  legally  enforceable
right   exists  to   set   off  current  tax  assets   against  current  tax  liabilities   and  the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Minimum Alternate Tax
Minimum  Alternate  Tax  (MAT)  paid  in  accordance  with  the  tax  laws,  which  gives
future  economic  benefits  in the  form  of adjustment to future  income tax  liability,  is
considered  as  an  asset  if there  is  convincing  evidence that the  Company will  pay
normal  income  tax.  Accordingly,  MAT  is  recognised  as  an  asset  in  the  Balance
Sheet when  it is probable that future economic benefit associated with  it will  flow to
the Company.

I)         Borrowing costs
Borrowing  costs directly attributable to the acquisition,  construction  or production of
an  asset  that  necessarily  takes  a  substantial  period  of  time  to  get  ready  for  its
intended  use  or  sale  are  capitalised  as  part  of  the  cost  of  the  asset.  All  other
borrowing  costs  are  expensed  in  the  period  in  which  they occur.  Borrowing  costs
consist  of  interest  and  other  costs  that  an  entity  incurs  in  connection  with  the
borrowing of funds.

Borrowing  cost  also  includes  exchange  differences  to  the  extent  regarded  as  an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

in)     Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs  incurred  in  bringing  each  product  to  its  present  location  and  condition  are
accounted for as follows:

•  Raw  materials  and  packing  materials,  Stores  and  spares  parts  and  loose  tools:

These are valued at lower of cost and  net realisable value.  However,  material  and
other items held for use in production of inventories are not written down below cost
if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at
or above cost.  Cost includes cost of purchase and  other costs  incurred  in  bringing
the  inventories to their present  location  and  condition.  Cost  is determined  on  FIFO
basis.
•  Finished  goods and work in  progress:  These  are valued  at lower of cost and  net

realisable vafue.  Cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion
of  manufacturing   overheads  based  on  the  normal   operating   capacity.   Cost  is
determined on FIFO basis.
•  Stock-in-trade:  These  are  valued  at  lower of cost  and  net  realisable  value.  Cost
includes  cost  of  purchase  and  other  costs  incurred  in  bringing  the  inventories  to
their present location and condition.  Cost is determined on FIFO basis.
•   Scrap:   These  are  valued   at  net  realisable  value.   Net   realisable  value   is  the

estimated  selling  price  in the  ordinary  course  of business,  less  estimated  costs  of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
Obsolete  inventories  are  identified  and  written  down  to  net  realisable  value.  Slow

moving and defective inventories are identified and provided to net realisable value.
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n)       Leases
The determination of whether an  arrangement is (or contains)  a  lease  is based  on

the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is,
or contains,  a  lease  if fulfilment of the  arrangement  is dependent on  the  use  of a

specific asset or assets  and the  arrangement  conveys  a  right to  use the  asset or
assets, even if that right is not explicitly apecified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessee
A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease.
A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
to the Company is classified as a finance lease.

Finance  leases are capitalised  at the commencement of the lease at the inception
date  fair  value  of  the  leased  property  or,   if  lower,   at  the  present  value  of  the
minimum   lease   payments.   Lease   payments   are   apportioned   between   finance
charges  and  reduction  of  the  lease  liability  so  as  to  achieve  a  constant  rate  of
interest on the remaining  balance of the  liability.  Finance charges are  recognised  in
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable
to  qualifying  assets,   in  which  case  they  are  capitalized  in  accordance  with  the
Company's general policy on the borrowing costs.
A leased  asset is depreciated  over the useful  life of the asset.  However,  if there is
no  reasonable  certainty that the  Company will  obtain  ownership  by the  end  of the
lease term,  the asset is depreciated  over the shorter of the estimated  useful  life of
the asset and the lease term.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit
and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

o)      Trade receivables
Trade  receivables  are  amounts  due  from  customers  for  goods  sold  or  services
rendered   in   the   ordinary   course   of   business.   The   company   holds   the   trade
receivables  with   the   objective  to   collect   contractual   cash   flows   and   therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less loss allowance.

p)      Cashand cashequivalents
Cash  and  cash  equivalent  in  the  consolidated  balance  sheet  comprise  cash  at
banks and in hand and short-term deposits with an original  maturity of three months
or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the  purpose of the statement of cash flows,  cash  and cash equivalents consist
of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above.

q)      Cash dMdend distributions to equity holders
The  Company  recognises  a  liability  to  make  cash  distributions  to  equity  holders
when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion
of  the  Company.  As  per  the  corporate  laws  in  India,  a  distribution  is  authorised
when  it  is  approved  by  the  shareholders.  A  corresponding  amount  is  recognised
directly  in  equity.



r)       Segmentreporting
Operating  segments  are reported  in a  manner consistent with the internal  reporting
provided to the chief operating decision maker (CODM).

Identlflcation of segments
ln accordance with  lnd AS  108 -Operating Segment, the operating segments used
to present segment information are identified based on information reviewed  by the
Company's  management to  allocate  resources to the  segments  and  assess their
performance.  An operating  segment is a component of the Company that engages
in  business  activities from  which  it earns  revenues  and  incurs  expenses,  including
revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company's other
components.   Results  of  the  operating  segments  are  reviewed   regularly  by  the
management team which has been identified as the chief operating decision maker

(CODM),  to  make  decisions  about  resources  to  be  allocated  to  the  segment  and
assess its performance and for which discrete financial information is avajfable.

s)       Flnanclal instruments
Financial Instrument
A financial  instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial  asset of one entity
and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial  assets  are  classified,  at  initial  recognition  and  subsequently  measured

el.ther at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (Ocl), and
fair value through profit or loss.

The  classification  of financial  assets  at  initial  recognition  depends  on  the  financial

asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and the Company's business model for
managing  them.  With  the  exception  of  trade  receivables  that  do  not  contain  a

significant financjng component or for which the Company has applied the practical
expedient,     the  Company  initially  measures  a financial  asset  at its fair value  plus,

in  the  case  of a  financial  asset  not  at fair value  through  profit  or  loss,  transaction

costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which  the  Company  has  applied  the   practical   expedient  are   measured   at  the
transaction price determined under lnd AS  115.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair

value through  Ocl,  it needs to give  rise to  cash  flows that are  `solely  payments of

principal and interest (Sppl)I on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment
is  referred  to  as the  Sppl  test  and  is  performed  at  an  instrument  level.  Financial

assets with  cash  flows that are  not Sppl  are classified  and  measured  at fair value
through profit or loss,  irrespective of the business model.
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The  Company's  business  model  for  managing  financial  assets  refers  to  how  it

manages  its financial  assets  in  order to  generate cash  flows.  The  business  model

determines  whether  cash  flows  will  result  from  collecting  contractual  cash  flows,

selling  the  financial  assets,  or  both.  Financial  assets  classified  and  measured  at

amortised  cost are  held within  a  business model with the objective to  hold financial

assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and
measured  at  fair  value  through  Ocl  are  held  within  a  business  model  with  the

objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and Selling.

Purchases  or sales  of financial  assets  that  require  delivery  of assets  within  a  time

frame  established   by   regulation   or  convention   in  the  marketplace   (regular  way

trades) are recognised  on the trade date,  i.e.,  the date that the  Company commits

to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
Financlal assets
Classjfication and subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into the
following categories upon  initial  recognition:

i).   Financial   assets  at  amortised   cost  -  a   financial   instrument   is   measured   at
amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
• The  asset is  held wi.thin a  business  model whose  objective  is to  hold  assets  for

collecting contractual cash flows,  and

•  Contractual terms of the asset give  rise on specified  dates to cash flows that are

solely    payments    of   principal    and    interest    (Sppl)    on    the    principal    amount
outstanding.

After  initial  measurement,  such  financial  assets  are  subsequently  measured  at
amortised  cost  using  the  effective  interest  method.  Effective  interest  rate  (EIR)  is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash  receipts through the expected
life  of the  financial  asset  to  the  net  canying  amount  of the  financial  assets.  The
future  cash  flows  include  all  other transaction  costs  paid  or received,  premiums  or
discounts if any, etc.
ii).  Investments  in  equity  instruments  of subsidiaries  and  associates -  Investments

in  equity  instruments  of subsidiaries.  joint ventures  and  associates  are  accounted

for  at  cost  in   accordance  with   lnd  AS  27  Separate   Financial   Statements.   On

disposal  of these  investments,  the  difference  between  net  disposal  proceeds  and

the carrying amount are recognised in the statement of profit and loss,
iii).  Financial assets at fair value

•  Investments  in  equity  instruments  other  than  above  -  All  equity  investments  in

scope of lnd AS  109 are measured at fair value.  Equity instruments which are held
for trading  are generally classified  as at fair value through  profit and  loss  (F\/TPL).
For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as
at  fair  value  through  other  comprehensive  income  (FVOCI)  or  fair  value  through

profit  and  loss  (FVTPL).  The  Company  makes  such  election  on  an  instrument-by-
instrument basis.  The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.
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If the  Company  decides to classify  an  equity  instrument as  at  FVocl,  then  all  fair

valiie  changes  on  the  instrument,  excluding  dividends,  are  recognised  in  the other

comprehensive  income  (Ocl).  There  is  no  recycling  of the  amounts  from  Ocl  to

profit or loss,  even  on sale of investment.  However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative    gain    or   loss   within   equity.    Dividends   on    such    investments   are

recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part
of the cost of the investment.
Equity instruments  included within the FVTPL category are  measured at fair value
with all changes recognised in profit or loss.
•  Derivative  assets - All  derivative assets are  measured  at fair value through  profit

and loss (FVTPL).

De-recognition of financial assets
A  financial  asset  is  primarily  de-recognised  when  the  rights  to  receive  cash  flows
from  the  asset  have  expired  or the  Company  has  transferred  `its  rights  to  receive
cash flows from the asset.

Amortised cost is calculated  by considering  any discount or premium  on acquisition

and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.  The effect of EIR amortisation
is   included   as  finance   costs   in  the  statement  of  profit  and   loss.   All   derivative

liabilities are measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Reclasslflcation of flnanclal assets
The  Company  determines  classification  of financial  assets  and  liabilities  on  initial

recognition.  After initial  recognition,  no reclassification  is made for  financial   assets

which   are   equity   instruments  and  financial  liabilities.  For  financial  assets  which

are   debt   instruments,   a reclassification is   made only   if  there   is a change in the
business  model  for  managing  those  assets.  Changes  to the  business   model   are
expected   to   be   jnfrequenL  The   Company's   senior   management   determines
change  in  the  business  model  as  a  result  of external  or   internal   changes   which
are    significant    to    the   Company's   operations.   Such   changes   are   evident   to
external   parties.    A  change  in   the   business  model  occurs  when  the  Company
either begins or ceases to  perform  an  activity that is  significant to  its  operations.  If
the    Company    reclassifies    financial    assets,     it    applies    the    reclassification

prospectively from  the  reclassification  date which  is the first day of the  immediately
next  reporting  period  following  the change  in  business  model.  The  Company  does
not restate any  previously  recognised gains,  [osses  (including  impairment gains or
losses) or interest.

Financial Liabilities
i) Financial Llabilitie8 at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Financial  liabilities  at fair value through  profit or  loss  include financial  liabilities  held
for trading and financial  liabilities designated  upon  initial  recognition as at fair value
through  profit or loss.  Financial  liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred  for  the  purpose  of  repurchasing  in  the  near  term.   This  category  also
includes derivative financial instruments entered  into by the  Company that are not
designated  as  hedging  instruments  in  hedge  relatjonshjps  as  defined  by  lnd  AS
109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.
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Financial  liabilities  designated  upon  initial  recognition  at fair value through  profit or

loss are designated  as such  at the initial  date of recognition,  and only if the criteria
in  lnd  AS  109  are  satisfied.  For  liabilities  designated  as  FVTPL,  fair value  gains/
losses  attributable  to  changes  in  own  credit  risk  are  recognized  in  Ocl.  These

gains/   loss   are   not   subsequently   transferred   to   profit   or   loss.   However,   the
Company  may transfer the cumulative  gain  or loss within  equity.  All  other changes
in  fair value of such  liability  are  recognised  in the  statement of profit and  loss.  The
Company has designated forward exchange contracts as at fair value through profit
or loss.

Subsequent Measurement
After  initial   recognition,   interest-bearing   loans  and   borrowings  are  subsequently
measured  at  amortised  cost  using  the  effective  interest  rate  (EIR)  method.  Gains
and  losses  are  recognised  in  statement  of  profit  and  loss  when  the  liabilities  are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.
Amortised  cost  is  calculated  by  taking  into  account  any  discount  or  premium  on
acquisition   and   fees   or  costs   that  are   an   integral   part  of  the   EIR.   The   EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition of flnanclal liabilities
A   financial    liability  is  de-recognised   when   the  obligation    under   the    liability   is
discharged or cancelled   or  expires. When an existing financial  liability   is   replaced
by  another  from   the   same lender on substantially different terms,  or the terms of
an     existing      liability     are     substantially     modified,     such     an     exchange     or
modification    is    treated    as  the   de-recognition   of  the   original   liability   and   the
recognition  of a  new ljabjlity.  The difference  jn  the  respective  carrying  amounts  is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Oftsettlng of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial  liabilities are offset and  the   net  amount   is   reported
in   the   balance  sheet  if there  is  a  currently  enforceable  legal  right  to  offset  the
recognised amounts and there is an intention  to  settle  on  a  net  basis,  to  realize
the assets and settle the liahilities simultaneously.

I)       lmpairmentof Financial Assets
AIl financial  assets except for those at FVTPL are subject to review for impairment
at  each  reporting  date  to  identify  whether  there  is  any  objective  evidence  that  a
financial   asset  or  a   group   of  financial   assets   is   impaired.   Different   criteria   to
determine impairment are applied for each
category of financial assets.
In  accordance  with  lnd  AS  109,  the  Company applies  expected  credit  loss  (ECL)
model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss
for  financial  assets  carried  at  amortised  cost.   ECL  is  the  weighted  average  of
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due
to  the  Company  in  accordance  with  the  contract  and  all  the  cash  flows  that  the
Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
interest  rate,  with  the  respective  risks  of default  occurring  as  the  weights.  When
estimating the cash flows, the Company is required to consider

• All  contractual  terms of the financial  assets  (including  prepayment and  extension)

over the expected life of the assets.
• Cash flows from the sale of collateral  held  or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.
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For trade  receivables  or any  contractual  right to  receive  cash  or another financial
asset  that  result  from  transactions  that  are  within  the  scope  of  lnd  AS  115,  the
Company  always  measures  the  loss  allowance  at  an  amount  equal  to  lifetime
expected credit losses.
Further,  for  the  purpose  of  measuring  lifetime  expected  credit  loss  allowance  for
trade receivables,  the Company has used  a practical  expedient as permitted  under
lnd AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision
matrix which  takes  into  account  historical  credit  loss  experience  and  adjusted  for

u)      Cash Flowstatement
Cash flows are  reported  using the indirect method,  whereby profit for the  period  is

adjusted  for  the  effects  of  transactions  of  a  non-cash   nature,   any  deferrals  or

accruals  of past or future operating  cash  receipts or payments and  item  of income

or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows.  The cash flows from

operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

v)      Exceptional items
When  the items of income and  expense within  profit or loss from  ordinary activities
are of such  size,  nature or incidence that their disclosure is relevant to explain the
performance  of the Company for the  period,  the  nature and  amount of such  items
are disclosed separately as exceptional item by the Company

w)     Chhers
Stores, Spares,  Chemical, Acid,  Dies & Other Items purchased by the Company are
directly  booked  as  expenditure,  hence  no  stock  records  are  being  maintained  for
the  same.  However,  closing  stock  of these  items  has  been  taken  as  per physical
verification the year end.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(All amounts are in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

4           Capital work in progress

Project in Progress

Asat
31 March 2024

2,118.64

4.1         Project  in  progress  consist  of company's  expansion  of manufacturing  facilities  at  Dadri,  Uttar  Pradesh,  at
estimated Project cost (including phaseH) of around Rs. 4,488.16 Million against which company has capital
comminent to the tune of 449.15 Mil]jon. Company has commenced the initial commercial production during
the year and accordingly capitalisation was mere in the respective head. The means of Finance for the Dadri
Project of the Company comprise the Term Loan taken from the State Bank of India & HDFC Bank Lihited,
Promcter's Contribution and Tntemal  Accruals. The amount of Capital  Work in Progress includes the amount
of Finance Cost incurred till the reporting pchod, for terms and security of loan repryments please refer note
no.   19.1  & 22.I.

4.2         Project  in  progress  consist  of Bansal  steel  and  power  Limited's  (Subsidiary)  expansion  of manufacturing
facilities at Baliadurgarh, Haryana, at estimated Project cost of around Rs. 279.44 Million.

43        There are no projects as on each reporting year where activity had been suspended.
Capital Work in Progress ageing schedule is as follows:

Pindcuhars

As at 31 NIrcb 2024

AmountinCWH'foraperindof
Total

I]ess than I  Year I-2 Years 2-3 Years tore than 3

(i)Projectinprogress 1,848.88 269,76 2,ll8.ffl

Total I,848.88 269.76 2,118.64

5            Intangible assets

Partieulars Computei. Software Total

Gross carrying amount
8.82 8.82Balance As at 7 December 2023^

Additions for the year 0.60 0.60

Disposals/adjustments for the year

BalanceAs at 31 Marclt 2024 9.42 9.42

Accumulated Am®rtisation
Balance As at 7 December 2023^ 8.44 8.44

Charge for the year 0.07 0.07

Balance As at 31  March 2024 8.50 8.50

Net l]lock carrying amount
Ba]abce As At I April 2023
31 March 2024 0.92 0.92

^The Conipany has acquired the equity shares of the Bansal Steel & Power Linited @SPL) and it becomes the

subsidiary of the Company on December 07, 2023, accordingly, the balance of Gross Block and Accumulated

Amortisation as at December 07, 2023 has been considered. •1\#



6             Investments (NOD-current)

investment in Mutual Funds
SBI Mutual Fund

Total

Aggregate aniount of quoted investments

Asat
31  March 2024

10.76

6.I         As at March 31, 2024 the subsidiary maintains an investment of Rs.10.76 Million(at Fair value as on date) in
2,32,684.499 units , each unit valued at Rs. 46.26 Net Asset Value per unit.  Investments in Mutual Funds are
assessed  for fair value measurement.  The valuation of these units has been  carried out based on the readily
available Net Asset Value.  The Cost of Acquisition  for the subsidiary is Rs.  10.00 Million.  The fair value of
the invesfroent in mutual funds on the date of acquisition of subsidiary was Rs.  10.48 Million.

7           Other Bank balances (Non-urrent)

Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months

Total
7.I         Bank / Fixed Deposits are under Lien / Custody  with Banks & Others

8            0tl)cr f]nancia] assets (Nob-urrent)

Security deposits

Total

Asat
31 March 2024

Asat
31 March 2024

8.I          Security Deposits include securities pledged with Electricity Deparment, Government Authorities etc,

9           0tller Non-Current Assets                                                                                                                  As at
31 March 2024

Advance for Capital Goods /Supplies

Less: Loss allowance
Total

396.63

9.I         Advances for capital goods / supplies is given for the Dadri project which is under capital work in progress.

9.2

No amount is due from directors or officers of the Company either severally or j-ointly with other person nor
due from firms or private Companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

i.,(u,b      ±



10

Current Assets
Inventories

Raw Materials
Work jn Process
Finished Goods
Stores, Spares & Loose Tools

Total

ro.i      Detalts of Goods in Transit, Included above
Raw Materials
Slores, Spares & Loose Tools

Asa'
31  March 2024

I,551.19

580.44

819.86

184. 74

3.136.23

289.02

4.53

10.2      Inventories have been hypothecated with banks in consortium against the working capital Loans

11          Trade receivables (Current)

Trade receivables

Classification of Trade Receivable:
Trade receivab]es considered good - Secured
Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk
Trade receivables - credit inpaired
Total
lmpairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)

Unsecured, consi dered good
Unsecured, considered doubtful
Trade receivables - credit inpalred

Other debts
Total

Asat
31  March 2024

3,SJ9.2J

3579.27

3,561.13

I 8. I 5

24.44

3,603.71

24.44

3,S79.27

11.I       Trade Receivables include due from related parties                                                                                                 194,32
11.2       Increase/decrease in the provisions of credit impaired charoced to proflt & Loss statement of the relevant

year.

113      The average credit period on sales of goods is upto 90 days.
11.4      Trade   Receivables   have   been   hypothecated   with   banks   in   consortium   against   the   Working   Capital

Loans(Refer Note No  I 9. I )

11.5      There are no unbilled Trade Receivables,
11.6      Trade receivables ageing schedule is as follows:

Parlieuhars

.`s al 31.`Ioul] 2024

Outstandi"! for fouow im periods from due date Of Davmenl
ToutLess th 6 dpntho 6 nDnths - I }ear I-2 'tars 2-3 '.ean )(ore than 3 `eac

(I)  lindiaputed TTade rccei` 3bles -considendgood 3.553 08 8.05I1.80

- `-® 000 056

3.561.13

(i]).Undispurd Trade Receivables - SigztiJfeant'ch`k
18.15979

18'5

increasemcT     tris(ill)UndLsputedTrade Receiubles - ciediaimpaired(i`J)Disp`itedTTadereeei\ablcs-consideredgood(`')/DisputedTndeRecelvables-Sigrif:cantIncreaseincreditmsk(`'i)DisputedTradeRecei`ables-credilinrmired

24.44

Total 3~nol.0l 19Jrs 2.„ 0.00 0.56 3.603.7t



12          Casl] and cash equivalents (Current)

Cash on hand
Balances with banks in current accounts

Total

13          Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Bank deposits with maturity less than 12 months

13.1       Bank / Fixed Deposits are under Lion/Custody  with Banks & Others.

14         Other fimncial assets (Current)

Security deposits
interest receivable on security deposits

interest accrued on fixed deposit with banks
Other Miscellaneous Income Receivab le
Total

Asat
31  March 2024

Asat
31 March 2024

Asat
31 March 2024

14.I        Security Deposits include securities pledged with Electricity Deparfuent, Government Authorities etc.

ls         Other current assets

Balance with statutory authorities
Prepaid Tares
Prepaid expenses
Advance to employees
Advance to Suppliers
Other Recoverable

Less: Loss allowance
Total

Asat
31 March 2024

ls.I       Others Recoverables includes an amount of Rs.  07.66 Million, recoverable from India Factoring and Finance
solutions  Pvt  Ltd  pertaing  to  10%  margin  money  against  the  expor(  recoverables  factored  throuch  them,
without recource to the company.

15.2      Advance to suppliers and other Recoverable incu]de an amount of Rs. 0.00 Million from related parties.

153      Prepaid expenses includes amounting to Rs.  I 1.87 Million in connection with proposed initial public offer of
equity shares of the Company.

C+,  s#



16          Share capital

As at 31 March 2024
Particulars

Equity share capital

Authorised
Equity shares of Rs. 5 each

Preference Share of Rs .10 each
Total

its ued, s ubecribed and fully paid up s hares
Equity shares of Rs. 5 each, fully paid up

Total

Number                    Amount ( {)

17,80,00,000.00                                890.cO

10too,OcO.cO                                    lo.cO

17.90'00'000.00                             900.00

12,74,54,390.cO                                  637.27

12,74£4390.00                           637.27

162      Terms/rights attaLched to shares of the compaLny:

i.            The Holding company( herein referred to as "the company") has only one class of equity shares referred to as
equity shares having a par value of Rs. 5 each, holder of equity share is entitled to one vote per share. In the
event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of
the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number
of equity shares held by the shareholders.

ii.           The Authroised Equity  Share Capital of the company was increased during the  FY 2023-24 from Rs. 210.00
Million to Rs. 890.00 Million.

iri.         There are no calls unpaid and no forffiture of shares for the reporting period.

iv,          The company has passed a special resolution in Extra ordinary General Meeting (EOGM) on November 24,
2023  to split its Equity Shares having face value of Rs.10 each into new face value of Rs. 5 each. Further, in
the  above  mentioned  EOGM  a resolution  for  issuance  of Bonus  Shares  in  ratio  of 6:I  was  also  approved.
Therefore, number of shares outstanding at the bednning of the year has been considered after taking the effect
of split of shares.
Shares  issued during the year represents  the Bonus  shares  issued  by the  company  in the ration  of 6:1  to  all
existing el igible shareholders.

16.4      The company has not declared any dividends for the year ended  3 lst March 2024.



16.5      Details of shares held by promoters

Pronber No. Of a hares As at Change during the No. of§hares As at a/0  OfTofal %  chmge

01 AFTil 2023 yeor 31 tw€h 2024 Shares dndng the }'car

AnitaaJpta Z07,leo 2,86,92,3cO 3,08,„,4cO 2424% 0.Owyo

Arun Olpta 21,95.550 2,85`42,150 3,07,37,7cO 24.12% 0.Ow/o

ArunfumarGipta(HUF) 13,10225 I,70J2,925 I,83,43,150 14Jgr/o 0.cO%

PranavBansal 14,42,7cO 123,85,loo lJ827,8cO 10.85% •5.ur/a

]6.6      i. No  class of shares have been  issued  as bonus  shares or for consideration  other than  cash by  the company
during the period  of five  yens  inmediately  preceeding the  current financial  year.  However,  certain  bonus
shares have been issued during the year.(Refer note 17.2(v) above)
ii. In the Financial Year 2020-21, the company executed Buy-Back of 8,66,600 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each.
iii.The company has passed a special resolution in Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EOGM) on November 24,
2023 to split its Equity Shares having face value of Rs.10 each into new face value of Rs. 5 each.

17         Other Equity

17         Reserve and surplus
a.           Security premium Accolint:

Balance at the berinning of the year
Addition during the year
Deletion during the year
Post Acquisition Share of parent
Balance at the end of the year (A)

b.           Retained earnings
Represents the undistributed surplus of the Company
Balance at the beginning of the year
Addition duing the year
Delction during the year
Post Acquisition Share of Parent
Balance at the end of the year (8)

c.           Capital Redemption Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year
Addition during the year
Deletion during the year
Post Acquisition Share of Parent
Balance at the end of the year (C)

d.          Capital Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Gain on bargaining on acquisition of subsidiary
Deletion during the year
Balance at the end of the year (D)

Reserve and Surplus (A+B+C+D)

Asat
31  March 2024

2,549.81

684.23
318.28

5 I .92
2,967.69

630.66

359835

:!`t>_    ±



17.2   Other comprehensive income
Represents the  re-measurements of defined employee benefit plans and Gain/Loss
on investment(net of tar)
Balances at the beginning of the year
Addition during the year
Deletion during the year
Post Acquisition Share of Parent
Balance at the end of the year

Total -Other Equity

18

8. Nature and purpose of reserves
(a) Capital Redemption  Reserve:  Capital Redemption Reserve created under the provisions of Companies
Act, 2013 upon Buy Back and redemption of Shares by the Company.

(b) Securities Premium Account : Amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares during the
issue  of shares  is  recognised  in  Securities  Premium  Account  and  will  be  utilised  in  accordance  with  the

provisions of companies Act, 2013

(c) Retf]ined Earnings:  Retained eanings are the profits /(loss) that the Company has earned till date less,
transfifrod to Capital Redemption Reserve, dividends or other distributions to shareholders if any.

(d) Capital Reserve: Capital Reserve represents the difference betveen the value of Net Assets acquired from
the subsidiary in the course of business combination and the consideration paid for such acquistion

(d)  Other  Comprehensive Income  (OCI)  :  OCI  represents balance  arising  on  account of Gain  /  (Loss)
booked on re-measurement of Defind Benefit Plans(net of tax) in accordance with hd AS-19 and Gain/(Loss)
on remeasurement of investments.

During the year company has issued 6 fully paid-up bonus equity shares for each equity share held (i.e. in the
ratio of 6:I ). For issuance of Bonus  Shares,  company have  utilized balance  in  Securities  Premium Reserve.
Capital Redemption Reserve and Retained Earnings.

Nonueontrolling interest (NCI)

N on-controlling hterest in Equity
Non-controlling Interest in The Reserves

Post Acquisition Reserve
Non-controlling Interest in Retained Earnings
Non-controlling Interest in OCI

Non Controlling Interest represents 23.85% stake in the Reserves and Share Capital of the Subsidiary company-
"Bansal Steel & Power Limited", bifurcated in Pre Acquisition and Post Acquisition share of reserves.



19          Borrowings (Nonngurrent)

Secured
Term Loan
-From Bank

Vehicle Loan
-From bank

Unsecurcd
From Body Corporate
From Directors
From Othus

Total

Asat
31  March 2024

2,380.13

19.I       Repaymen"erms and security disclosure for the outstanding long-ter[n borrowings:

frm §BIGEL!J14b I
CrmB*On2J) DHRAGin

LdehiBUL! Irfuhd in I illlGm" SCBl Sol §Bltrnth HHfuDul §CB'

TOT.\L
col 'J5,/, 9J0% 9]'% l'J5,/, 10.15% 9j5,/, '''Y, »5% 7JO'/, 8.7!% 7J5%

\`en.mthl Ou!7 lb% ftb!' NI2( -tr8!' lb]6 ha!' Itr'i )tr'! hb)I kb!'

mb mco «.% 9q 8.in 19.„ 167 #.!7 '19„ '1) j'9''

m# nm 9sO 5.cO 9i! "t8 16jlq) '.# 176.4'

rm.Z 19.89 21,5' 10,I IcO7' ld!q' 4!7 „lAI

amp „j7 Ice.74 [b('0' 31lJ'

mp t?t leo.7l 165.„ '19.''

rm]' 1«! leo.7J 16j.„ ".''
ml.)2 1!» ltlm 178.IJ

".„ 16„ 16„

mB.„ 1871 18.,I

»EL)5 1" 1„'

CrmdAbrty Z7JO «" Z5.4( 8.70 !J' Z2.70 9]1 7J8 !OM 'j5 !45,7'

rmTu 107J8 »9.7S ''Jlo „j' !J» '" 9]1 'W,l' „'69 „''6 16.79 16„.01

Maturity Profile and Rate of Interest of Vehicle Loans are set out as below:

Perticulari
'ear o'.\inritr

ROI (Cu,.renthfroritie8)
2025-2026 2026-2027 2027-2028 2028-2029 TOTA|`

Chap Bap± Vehi;lehoan
Ma).-26 785%

0.14 0.15 003
OJ2

Canac Bank VehieleIJ,an
Jar-29 7.50yo

0.11 0.12 0.L3 0.15 0.21
0.72

Cinae But VeliisleIJ)an
Jan-29 7.5erya 0" 0.70 0.78 0.86 120

4.18

CmaeBanLVebieleI,eon
Now-25 7.50%

I.99 lit 3.43

`Cen8m BanL Veh.Loan

M8\,-27 7.5¢ya
2.48 2.74 302 054

8.78

Can" Bank VehielelJ]an
Jun-27 7.50y®

117 129 143 0.64
4j4

Yes Back VehieleLoan
Apr-25 825%

2.35 0.0)
2.,4

Told 8J)8 6j5 5J9 2.19 lJl 24.,I



Bansal Steel & Power Limited :-
Maturity ProrLle and Rate of Interest of  Loans are set out as below:

Particulars IDFC Bank ltdIjrmurorklift)
S81TermI.oon S81OrLLrm SBIGECLha SBITermljrm SBI Term Lun

Total AIIrmtoutstanding(includingcurrentnrfuities) 0.76 21.45 56j5 12937 44.81 21.90

Curentmaturity 0.76 21.25 33.75 35.53 30.00 I.37

2025-26 0,20 22.60 35.53 14.81 5.48

2026-27 35.53 5.48

2027-28 22.80 5.48

2028-29 4.11

PeriulofMfurity 01-Oct-24 Ol-Nov-25 Ol-Dec-25 Ol-Dec-27 01-Dec-25 3l-Dec-28

Rate of htrerest 9.cO% 7.50% 7.95% 7.95% 7.50% 9.55%

From bank
Term Loan
Bansal Wire Industries Limited ffarent ComDaDvl
1.  The  Company has  obtained  the  Sanction  of Term  loan  of Rs  200  Crones  towards  the project  at Dadri
Gautanbuddha Nagar from State Bank of India and HDFC Bank Limited in the FY 2022-23.
•  A  fi.rst moitgage  and  charge  on  an  Borrower's  immovable properties  (owned  and/or  leased),  present and

future, together with all structures and appurtenances thereon. present and future, pertaining to the Dadri unit
located at N T P C Road3 Dadri, Gautambuddha Nagar.
•  A  first  charge  {by  way  of hypothecation}  on  all  Borrower's  tangifole  movable  assets,   including movable

plant  and  machinery,  machinery  spares,  tools  and  accessories,  furniture,  fixtures,  vehicles  and  all  other
movable  assets,   ,  present  and   future  pertaining  to  the  Dadri  unit  located  at  N   T  P   C   Road,  Dadri,
Gautanfouddha Nngar.
- A second pari passu charge on all Borrower.s current assets and receival]les including book debts, operating

cash flows, receivables, commissions. revenues of whatsoever nature and wherever arising, present and future
pertaining to the Company;
-  A  second  pari  passu  change  on  all  Borrower's  inmovable properties  and movable  assets,  where  existing
lenders have first charge.
-Corporate Guarantee of Group Companies / Personal Guarantee from Promoters.

2.   Term  Loan taken  from lndusind  Bank against First and  exclusive charge  on Fixed  Assets  (Machineries)

purchased  /to  be  purchased  from  the  Term  Loan  for  present  and    future  at  existing  location  Ghaziabad.
Corporate Guarantee of the Companies and Promoters of the Company.

3. Company has GECL & COVID facilities Secured by  Hypothecation  of Raw Material,  Wok -in -Process,
& Finished Goods, Bock Debts & other Cunent Assets and 2nd Charge of  Fixed  Asscts   including Land &
Building of Factory located at Unit I, H & Ill  at  Ghaziabad  U.P. And Hypothecation of charge on  lst Pal
Passu basis with member Banks of Working Capital Consortium.

BansaL Steel & Power Limited/Subsidinrv ComDanv)
First charge on hypothecation charge on all present and future current assets of the unit including stocks of
Raw  Material,  Semi-finished  Goods,  Finished  Goods,  including  goods  in  transit,  stores,  spares  and  other
immoval]le current assets, receival)les /supply bill/book debts Hypothecation of Plant & Machinery. Equitable
Mortgage and first Charge on of the Factory Land & Building of the Company and Personal Guarantees of
Promotors of the Company namely Mr. Arun Gupta, Mrs. Anita Gupta and Mr. Pranav Bansal & Corporate
Guarantee of M/s Bansa] IIich Calbons Private Limited.



b
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Vehicle Loan
All the Vehicle Loans are secured by way of hypothecation of Vehicle purchased from loan proceeds.

Unsecured
The Company has the Term Loans for its Dadri Project under Consortium Arrangement in which State Bank
of hdia is  a Lead Bank and IIDFC  Bank Limited  is  a Member Bank and  as per the terms  of Consortium
Arrangements, the Company have to  infuse Unsecured  Borrowings  and the sane to be subordinated  to the
facility in all respect.

The Company has availed a Term Loan  from  Standard  Chartered Bank.  classified  as unsecured  loans  from
body  coxporates  under non  current borrowings,  in  view  of non provision  of any  security by the  company.
However, the loan is secured by the personal inmovable property of a Promoter of the company and supported
by  the  personal  guarantee  of Promoters  Shri  Ann  Gupta,  Smt.  Anita  Gupta  &  Sh.  Pranav  Bansal  and
Corporate  Guarantees  of Satya  Credits  Private Limited,  Shivam Wires  Private  Linited,  Fair Value Traders
Private Limited and company had not offched any security or guarantee for the same.

Provisions (Non-Current)

Provisions for employee benefits (refer note 44)
Provision for gratuity

Total

Deferred Tax ajiability)/ Assets net

Deferred Tax (Liability)/ Assets  on account of :
Tindng difince on account of depreciation and anortisation on property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for doubtful debts
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability
Remeasurement Gain/(Loss)
Unabsorbed Depreciation and Loss
Sub total (A)

Deferred Tax qiability)/ Assets  on account of :
Derivative finan cial Assets
Sub total a)
Deferred Tax (Liability)/ Assets  Net (A+B)

Asat
31 March 2024

Asat
31 March 2024

(181.01)

13.45

7.39

2.69

(0.27)
36.03

(121.73)

(121.73)

21.I   Ahed€nt in deferred fat qjaHlitie.) mdas8giv for the `edr ended 31 Mardi 2024 :-

Opening defened       Opening deferr`ed       hcone ts                 hcome ¢BI           Closing difemedtai

tat a8get / OldilJt}')    tax a!sct/ Oiatllit}-+  (expense)/ credt      (expme) /            B8et /alahility)

BSPL as a                  rceognized iq           credt

beeemtr07, 2023    pofitorhog            I.cogriaedin
Oa

DderredTaa aidiltryy he8e.8  o-a.eel.in ot :

Timing diference on account Of deprcoinlton and amortisatinn on

property ` plant and equirnent and intangthle assets

ProvisfonfoTexployeebenefas

Pro` is fop for doubtful debts

Rencas urement of the net defined benefit linbtlrty

Remeasurement Giin/(Loss)

Un8bsorbed Deprecintinn and Loss

Subnd(.i)
beferi.ed Tai (Ijahi]ltyy A88ce  on 8oount of :

DerNativefmapcndAssets

Subtod 0)
Deferred Ta= qual[lityv .twBets  7\'el (A+B)

(10147)                             (6.44)

6J9                            I.78

6AO                                (I.74)

(]25)

(0.17)

36.03                             (0.00)

(62J6)                              (54,08)                             (6.40)                         I.11                              (121.73)

(62J6)                             64us)                            (6.40)                        I.11                             (121.73)



22          Boi.rowings (Current)

Secured
-From Bank
Curent maturities of long ten borrowings (refer 19. I )
Unsecured
Cunent mat`irities of long ten borrowings (refer 19. I )

Asat
31 March 2024

22.I       From bank
Bansal Wire Industries Limited( Parent ComDanvl

The Company is availing the Working Capital Loan Facility, funded and non funded, under the Consortium
Armgement in which State Bank of India is a Lead Bankers and Canara Bank. HDFC Bank & Induslnd Bank
Limited are Member Banker and Facility Secured by Hypothecation of Raw MatdiaL Work - in -Process, &
Finished Goods, Book Debts & other Current Assets and 2nd Charge over the Fixed Assets including Land &
Building of Factory. And Personal Guarantee of Promoters Sh. Ann Gupta, Smt. Anita Gupta &  Sh. Pranav
Bansal and Corporate Guarantee of Bansal Hick Cafoons Private Limited & Balaj i Wires Private Limited.

Bansal Steel & Power Limited (Subsidiarvl

Secured    by way of  Hypothecation  of  Raw Material,   Work - in  -Process, & Finished Goods, Book Debtsts
and  coLlateraly  secured  against Fixed   Assets   including  Land  &  Building  of Factory  /Works  and  Personal
Cinarantee of Promoters  namely Mr.  Ann  Gupta,  Mrs.  Anita Gupta and  Mr.  Pranav  Bansal  and Corporate
Guarantee of Bausal High Cafoons Private Limited as stated in tens of sanction/agreement.

222      For details of securities provided are riven in note 19.I under non current borrowings.

23         Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 23.1
below)
Total   outstanding   dues   to   creditors   other   than   micro   enterprises   and   small
enterprises
Total

Trade payables ageing schedule is as follows:

Asat
31 March 2024

59.15

532.21

Parti€ulan

As ai 3 I ivhach 2024

Outstmding for ftllndng ieriods from dLie date of nyment
TinLess tim I y.ar I-2 ye- 2J y.on tore tim 3 years

(I) Undisputed-MSME 59. 1 5

0.12

5915

(ii) Undisputed, Oners(iti)Duspuleddues.MSME(iv)D4sputeddues-others 532.co 532.21

TIA S9 I 24 0.12 59lJ6

23.1       Disclosures as  requird  utlder Section  22  of the Micro,  Small  and  Medium Enterprises Development
(MSMED) Act, 2006 due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

The  Group  has  received  Micro,  Small  and  Medium  Enterprises  (MSME)  declaration  from  vendors  and
disclosure under section 22 of the Micro,  Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act. 2006
has  been  made.  However,  Group  has  never,  so  far,  received  any  claim  or  have  any  pending  claim  for
outstanding amount due to MSME as on the  31st MarcIT2024.

bez,#



24         Other fimncial liabilities (Current)

Employees related payables
Other financial liabilities

Total

Asat
31 Marcli 2024

24.1       Employees related payables includes payables related to employees such as Bonus & director remuneration.

25          Provisions (Current)                                                                                                                                  As at
31 March 2024

Provision for Employee Benefits

Total

1 I .04

25.1       Provisions for employee benefits includes the provision for gratuity (refer note 4l) and leave encashment.

26          Current tax liabilities (net)

Income tax liability (current year)
Less: Income tax paid

Total

27          Other current liabilities

Advance from customers
Statutory dues
Other credit Balances

Total

28         Revenue from operation

Sale of product
Domestic Sale
Export Sale

SuDwh of Services
Jch Work /Service Charges

Other Ot)eratinq Revenue
Sale of Scrap
Other Sales
Duty Drawhack Received on Exports
Income of RODTEP License received against Exports

Total

Asat
31 March 2024

331.26

(294.55)

Asat
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2024

21,607.78

2,839,41

ds,#



29           Other income

Interest income on
- Fixed deposits
- Others

Gain on foreign exchange fluctuation (net)
Rent Received
Allowance for expected credit Loss Recovery
M i scellancous income

Total

30          Cost of materials consumed

Raw materials Consumed
Opening stock
Balance as at 7 December 2023 -BSPL*
Add: Purchases during the year

Less: Closing stock

Total

Year ended
31  March 2024

Year ended
31  March 2024

I,616.49

232.93

19,868.32

21,717.74

I,551.19

20,166.5S

3o®i       *The company has acquired the equity shares of the Bansal steel & Power Limited (BSPL) and its becomes
the  subsidiary  of the  Company  on  December  07,  2023,  accordingly,  the  balance  of opening  stock  as  on
December 7, 2023 has been considered.

31          Changes  in  inventories  or  Finished  Goods.  Stock  in  Trade  and  Work  in
Progress

Finished goods and stock in trade
Opening stock
Balance as at 7 December 2023 -BSPL*

Less: Closing stock

Work in progress
Opening stock
Balance as at 7 December 2023 -BSPL*
Less: Closing stock

(Increase) / Decrease  in  inventories or Finished Goods, Stock in  Trade and
Work in Progress

Year ended
31  Marcli 2024

(101.17)

152.96

182.09

580.44

(245.39)

(346.56)

3t.I       *The company has acquired the equity shares of the Bansal steel & Power Limited (BSPL) and its becomes

the  subsidiary  of the  Company  on  December  07,  2023,  accordingl}',  the  balance  of opening  stock  as  on
December 7, 2023 has been considered.

32          Employee benerits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity (refer note 448)
Employee compensation expense
Staff wel fare expenses

Total

S2.1       For Manegerial Remuneration ref ;er Related party Dosclosure in Note No. 43

Year ended
31  March 2024

t>st



33          Finance costs

Interest Expenses
Interest to Bank
Interest to Others

Other Borrowjm! Casts
Bank Changes & Commission
Guarantee Charges

Total

34          Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation on right to use of leasehold plot of land

Total

34®1       Roter Note 3 & 5 j;or Depreciation and amortisation expense.

35          Other expenses

Manufacturing Expenses
Stores & Spares Consumed
Packing Material Consumed
Generator Maintenance
Electrical Repair & Maintenance
Machinery Maintenance
Job Work Charges
Electricity & Power Charges
Building Maintenance Expenses
Pollution Control E xpenses
Testing Charges
Rent on Machinery
Water Charges
Lease Rent Paid (DG Set & Transformer)

Administrative, Selling & Distribution Expenses
Administration Charges on P,F,
Advertisement Expenses
Auditors Remuneration (refer note 40)

Remuneration paid to the auditors of holding company
Remuneration paid to other auditors

Bad Debts Written Off
Sundry Balance Written Off
Brokerage & Commission
Sales Promotion Expenses
Cartage Outward
Charity & Donation
Conveyance & Travelling Expenses
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses (refer note 41 )
Fire Extinguishers Expenses
Insurance Charges
Legal & Professional Expenses

\

Year ended
31  March 2024

Year ended
31  March 2024

Year ended
31  March 2024



M iscellaneous Expenses
Office Expenses
Postage & Telegram
Printing & Stationary
Rates, Fees & Taxes
Rent Paid
Security Serviees Expenses
Telephone Expenses
VAT, GST and Excise Demand
Vehicle Maintenance
Web Designing

Total

36

37

38

39

Exceptional Items

Profit on Sale of Shares
Profit on Sale of Fixed Asset

[ncom€-tax

The income tax expense consists of the following:
Current tax
MAT Credit Adjusted
Earlier Year Tar
Deferred tax
Total tax expense

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Gratuity

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability (A)
Remeasurement gain/ (loss) on investment

Remeasurement gain/ (loss) on Mutual funds (8)
Total                                   C = (A+B)

Income Tax Effect on the above ( D )
Total 0tl)er Comprehensive Income(D-C)

Earnings/(Loss) per share

Prorit for the year for basic/diluted earning per share (A)
Weighted-average  number  of  equity   shares  outstanding  during  the  year  for
calculation of basic earning per share (8)

Weighted-average  number  of  equity   shares  outstanding  during  the  year   for
Restated calculation of basic earning per share (C)

Weighted-average  n`rmber  of  equity   shares  outstanding  during  the  year  for
calculation of diluted earning per share (D)

Weighted-average  number  of  equity   shares  outstanding  during  the  year  for
calculation of diluted earning per share (E)

17.57

5.59

I.03

3.26

18.63

12.64

15.88

2.59

2.63

4.40

I.31

2,660.88

Year ended
31  Marcl) 2024

Year ended
31  March 2024

Year ended
31  March 2024

736.16

127,454,390

127,454,390

127,454,390

127,454,390



Nominal Value of Equity Shares ( {)
Basic earning per share (Are) in Rs.

Basic earning per share (Restated) (A/C) in Rs.
Diluted earning per share (A/D) in Rs.
Diluted earning per share (Restated) (A/E) in Rs.

40

i. For the Purpose of calculating the Earnings per share,  Weighted Average number Of Equity shares of the
Parent Company  i.e.  Bansal  Wire  Industries  Lindted  after taking the  impact  of Bonus  shares  and  Split of
shares have been considered in accordance with lnd AS-33. The Board of Directors in their meeting held on
November  14,  2023  approved  split  of Equity  share  of Rs.  10  each  into  2  equity  shares  of Rs.  5  each  and

approved  the  issue  of Bonus  of  6  fully  paid  up  equity  shares  for  each  equity  share  held,  which  were
subsequently  duly  approved  by  the  members  in  their  Extra  Ordinary  General  Meeting  (EOGM)  held  on
November 24, 2023  and  alloment of Bonus  Shares were  completed  by the company  on December  1,  2023,
hence, nominal value of Equity  Share is considered  as Rs.  5 per share and the number of shares have been
cons`idered after talcing the above effect for calculat'ing the Earnings Per Share.

ii. Earnings attributable to the owners for the purpose of F,PS includes the Profit made by the parent company
and share of parent i.e., 76.15% in the earnings of Subsidiary i.e. Bansal Steel & Power Limited

Payment to auditors

For Holding Company
Statutory Audit Fees including quarter.]y audits
Fees for others

For Subsidaries
Statutory Audit Fees including quarterly audits
Fees for others

Year ended
31  March 2024

::-a-   f



41    Expenditi]re on corpora.e social Responsibility

Particulars
i.           Amount required to be spent by the company during the year
ii.           Amount of ex|)endtture incuTTed

ConstructioTi/acquisition of any 8ssct

Ch purposes other than above
iii.          Excess / (Shortfall) at the end of the year

iv.          Total of previous year Excess / (shortfall)
v.          Reason for shortfall
vie          Nature ofcsR activitles

Contributton made to entitles carr)/ing out social welfare activates as menttoned tn Schedule-VII of companles Act,
2013 & having all the requisite Approvals and duly registered with Ministry of corporate Affairs for CSF{  Activities

vii.         Deta] I s of related party transactions

Viii.         where a provision is made wtth respect to a liabit]ty Incurred by entering ir]to a contractual obllgatlon, the movements ]n the

provision during the year
ix.          E.`cess amount spend for the year (Accordlr.g to the subsection 3 of sectlon I 35 ofcompanics Act-2013, the company may

set off the excess amount spend against the amouiit required to be spent ln immediate succeeding three Financial Years)

Year elided
31  Marcli 2024

According to the provstons of Section  135 of Companies Act 2013, during the  Financial  Year 2023-24; the company and subsidiary are collectively

required to spend an amount of Rs   20.94 millions.  Howe\ier, the group has  spent an amount of Rs   22.03 million  in the curTent financial year (after

considering  the  excess  amount  of Rs.   I  28  mt«ion  spent  in  the  previous  financial  year)  on  Corporate  Social  Responslibilities   E`iccess  amount  spent

during the year `^/ill be utilised accordmg to the provisions of cornpanies Act, 2013

42    Segment Reportilig
Parent Compow
Segments to be identified in accordance urith Indian Accounting Standards on Segment Reportmg (Ind AS I 08) taking into account the orgamzatton
struct:ires well as diffchential risks and returns Of these segments.

The Company is primaTily engaged in the business of manufacturing Of wires   Accordingly. the entire operattons of the Compan)r are governed by the
same set Of risk and rewards and thus, it operates in a single prtmary segment.

Siibsidia rv Comi)ah`r

Segments have been identified in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard on Segment Reporting (lnd AS  108) taking Into account the organization
structures well as diiferential rislts and returns of these segments.

Tl`e Company is in the busLness Of manufacturing of Steel Wire products and also undergone Job-Work activities related to manufacturing process of
Steel Wire products therefore, company has two principal operating and reporting segments; viz. Oum Manufacturing & Sales and Job Work and both
are the Reportable Segments

a) Revemte and Expenses have been identified to a segment on the basis Of relationship to operating activities of the segment. Revenue and Expenses
which relate to enterprlse as a `whole and are not allocable to a segment on reasonable basis and have been disclosed as "Unallocable"

b) Assets and Liabilities other than  Trade Receivables and Inventory (other than Consumabtes) carmot be allocated to a segment on reasonable basis
and therefore, ha`re been disclosed as "Unallocable".

Particulars
Manufacturing&Sales Jlob Work Unallocable Total

2023-24 2023-24 2023-24 2023-24
Revenue from Operations (Net ofGST)

5.638.06 I,025.87 6,663.93
Segment Result beforeDepreciationInterestandTaxes

482.25 99.86 3.06 585.17
Depreciation and AmortizationExpense

106.39
Finance Cost - 98.40
Profit Before Tax and ExceptionalItems

482.25 99.86 3.06 380.38
Exceptional Item 42.85
Profit Before Tax 482.25 99.86 3.06 423.24
Tax Expenses - 105.04
Profit After Tax 482.25 99.86 3.06 318.20
Other Information
Segment Assets I,448.53 I.327.07 2,775.60
Segment Liabilities 1. i 50.04 I.150.04



43   Related party Transactions

43.I
A)                 Related parties wliere con(rol exists

Related parties aild flature of related party relationships

I)escription of relationship                                                Name of the prrty

(i)     Subsidiary                                                                                     Bansal steel & Power Limited

8)                Related parties and flature of related party relationsl)ipa with whom transactions liave taken place durinf! tlie year

Description of relationship

(i)                Jointly control entity / Associate

(ii)                Directors

(iii)               Key MallageJ`ia]  Persons
Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretay
Company Secretay
Company Secretay

(iv)              Relative of I)i rectors

Name of the party

NIL

Ann Gupta (ChairTnan & Whole Time Directoi.)
Saurabh Ckel
PTanav Bansal (Managing DirectoT & CEO)

Umesh Kumar Gupta (Whole Time Director & COO)
Satish Prakash Agarval
Soulshi Bansal (upto 17-Oct-2023)
Anita Gupta
Mayank Gupta (upto 25-Aug-2023 )

Subodh Kumar Aggal`^ral (upto 25-Aug-2023 )

Sunita Bindal (w.e.f. 24-Nov-2023)

R]tu Bansal (w.e.f. 24-Nov-2023)

Vogesh Oberoi
Subhash Agarwal (upto 04-Sep-2023)
Rakesh Kunar Gupta

Ghanshyam Das Gujrati (w e.f. 25-Aug-2023)
Sumit Gupta (w e f.  17-Oct-2023)
Vikas Gangwar(Upto  16-Sep-2023 ) (Subsidiary Company.)

Anshika Gupta (w e.f. 22-Sep-2023) (Subsidiary Company)

Arun Kumar Gupta (HUF)
Shyam Sunder Anin Kurnar

(v)                Enterprise in which direc.ors orthe comoanv and their relatives are able to exercise sif!niricant influence:

8) Tran88ctions witl] related Parties

Bansal High Carbons Pnvate Limited
Balaji Wires Private Limited
Manglam Wires Pvt. Ltd.
Paramhans Wires Pvt. Ltd
Bansal Steel & Power Ltd.
Bansal Aradhya Steel (P) LTD.

Bansal Enterprises lnc

Manishi Towers Pvt.  Ltd.

Bansal Strips Pvt Ltd
Shyam Sunder Arun Kumar Pvt  Ltd.

Traiisactiol`s Between Bansal Wire Industries Limited and Ban8al Steel and Power Limited (Upto 06
December 2023 of Currel). Year)

Sales
Sales (Others)

Purchase
Purchase (Other Items)
Fixed Asset (Sold)

Fl red Asset (Purchase)
Job Work Charges Paid

Balaji W'ires Prlvate Limited

Sales

Sales (Others)

Purchase
Purchase (Zinc )
Purchase (Other Items)
Fix ed Asset (Purchased)

Fixed Asset (Sold)

BEERE



Job Wot.k Charges Paid

Service Charges Received
Other Services Charges
Lease Rent Pald (DG Set)-Dadn

Bansal Aradhya Steel  Private Limited
Sales

Sales (Others)

Purchase

Fixed Asset ( Purchase)

Bansal Enterprises tnc

Sales

Purchase

Sales/Business Promotion Expenses

Commission on Sales

Bansal High Carbons Private Linited
Sales

Sales (Others)
Purchase
Purchase (Oner Items)
Fixed Asset
Fixed Asset (Sold)

Service Charges Paid

Other Services Charges
Lease Rent Received

Manglam Wires Private Llmited

Sales

Sales (Others)
Fixed Asset

Job Woi.k Charges Paid

Paramhans Wires PTivate Limited
Sales

Sales ( Cthers)
Purchase (Other Items)

• Above figures are exclusive of GST wherever applicable

Ann Gupta
Anita Gupta
Bansal Strips Private Limited

Manishi Tower Private Limited
Prar,av Bansal
S K. Agarwal (HUF)

Sh  rfu Gupta
Sh  Ann Kumar Gupta (HUF)
Sonakshi Bansal
Subodh K- Agarwal
Shyam Sunder Gupta (HUF)
Shyam Sunder Anin Kumar Pvt. Ltd.
in Gupta
Mayank Gupta ( upto 25-Aug-2o23 )
Pranav Bansal
Umesh K- Gupta

Rent- Delhi
Interest Paid
Interest Paid
Interest Paid

Interest Paid
Interest Paid
Interest Paid
Interest Paid
Interest Paid

Interest Paid
tnterest Paid
Interest Paid
DITector Remuneration

Director Remuneration
Director Remuneration

Director Remuneration
Subodh Kumar Aggarval (upto 25-Aug-2023)       Director Remuneration

Saurabh Goel                                                                      S itting Fees

Satish pTakash Agarwal                                                  Sitting Fees

Sunlta Bindal (w e f  24-Nov-2023)                            Sitting Fees

RItu Bansal (w e f`  24-No`.-2023)                                 Sitting Fees

Siibodh Kumar Aggarural                                              Salary
Ghanshyam Dos G`{jrati (w e f. 25-Aug-2023)        Salary

Sumit Gupta (w.c f.170ct-2023)                               Salary
Gaurav Gupta                                                                  Salary

Bafarice outstanding as at tlie end of the `.ear (Dr.)

Bansal Entefpnses he
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Balance outstandinf! as at the end of. tlie veal /Cr.I

Manglan wires Pvt  Ltd
Manishi Towers Pvi.  Ltd.

Bansal Aradhya Steel (P) Ltd
Bansal Strips Pvt Ltd

wh Gupta Loan
Arun Kumar Gupta (HUF) Loan

Sonakch I Bansal
Anita Gupta Loan
Pranav Bud Loan
s K. Agarwal un
Subodh Kumar Aggarwal Lean
Bansal High Calbons Prrvate Limited
Arm Gupta
Subodh Kumar Aggarwal
Shyam Sunder Ann Kumar Pvi  Ltd.
Balaji Wires Private Limited

Cinv Gupta
Ghanshyam Das Gujratl
Sumit Gupta

Umesh Kumar Gupta

Banso( Steel & P(nver ]Jmlted (Subsidiary Company)

C) Tratlsactions `irith related Parties ( From 7tl) December 2023 to 3lst Marsh 2024)

Bansal High cafoons pTivate Limited                                 Sales

Puehase
Purchase-Other Items

Balajl Wires Pnvate limited

Paramhans Wires Pvt. Ltd

rfu Gupta
Pranav Bansal
Anshiha Gupta
Pranav Bansal

Balance outstanl]ing as at the end of the year (Cr.)

Sales

Sales (Cther Items)
Purchase

Purchase (Other Items)

Sales

Sales (Other Items)

Purchase(Others)

Rent
Rent

Salary
Director Remuneration

Bansal High Carbons PTivate Ltmited

Balaji Wires Pnvate Limited

Pranav Bansal
Anshika Gupta

D)I:::e8a£°:c:i':gsout¥,i,di:nTtewd!::::;::?;rd°a:eprd'fir=:|f8afattee:'e:::)uES!':°ntilHhedateoffimicialsta.ements

Job Work /Service Charges
Purchase
Sales

44    Employee benefit obliga(ions

P8 rent ComDanv
A          Deflned contribution plans

Tl]e amount recognised 8s expense towards contribution lo defined contribution plans for the year is as
below:

Company's contnbution to Provident Fund
Company's contribution to Employees' State Insurance Scheine

Total



8          Defined benefit plan -Gratuity*

(i)          Presen. value of defined benefit obligation as at tlie end of tlie year

Non-current

Curent

C          Disclosure or gratuity

(ii)         Movement in the present value ofderined beneri( obligation reeognised jn the
I)alance slteet

Present value of defiited benefit obligation 8s at tlle beginning of. tlie year

Curent service cost
Past sevice cost

Interest cost
Benefits paid
Actuanal loss/(gain )

Present value of derined benefit ol)ligation as at tlte end of the year

(iii)         Expense recogi)ised in the statemen. of profit and loss consists of:

Curent service cost
Past sevice cost
Interest cost
Net impact on profit (before tax)
Actuanal losst(gain) recognised during the ycaT
Amoun. recogbised in total compreheitsive income

ds~#



(iv)         Breakup of8ctuarial (gainvless recogl)ised in the otller comi.rehensive income:

Actuarial (gain)Aoss from change in financ]a] assumption

Acniarial (galn)doss from experience adp ustment

Total actuerial (gainvloso

(v)         Actua rial assil mp.ions

D]scount rate

Rate of increase in compensatlon levels
Withdrwa] rate

Retirement age (in years)
Mortality rate

Average Past Service (in years)

Average Age (in years)
Average future service (in years)

734%

500%
500%
6000

100% of lALM ( 2012-14)

890
4214

'786

Notes:

(a)         The discount rate is based on the prevatling market yield oflndlan Govemmernt bonds as at the balance sheet date for the estlmated tens ofobltgations

(I))         The estimates offuture salary increases considered takes into account the inflation. sentonty  promotion a[id other relevant factors
We have used the Projected Unit C`rcdit (PUG) actuariaL method to assess the plan's liabilities allowing for retire'ment. death-in-service and wtthdrawa]

(C)          aTid also compensatedabsence whl[e ln service

(vi) Sen8ilivity amlysis for gratuity li®bili.y

Impact o.cllange in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year

• Impact due to increase of 0 5 %
-Impact due to deeTease of  0.5 %

Impact orchange ib salary increase
PTesent value of obligation at the end of the year

• Impact due to increase of 0.5 ®/a

• Impact due to decrease of 0.5 %

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change of an assumptton while holding all other assumptlons constant. In practice. this is un]ikely to occur
and changes in some of the ass`mptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
asslrmplions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected umt credit method at the erid of the Teporttng

period) has been applied which was api]lied whlJe calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in tlie balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used ln preparing the sensi(ivity analysls did not char,ge when as compared to previous year

(`.ii)        Ttie plan exposes the company to actuarial nsks such as interest Tale Tisk and inflation nsk
[nteres. rate risk
The present value of tl`.e defined benefit liability is calculated using a dlsl-ount rate determlned by reference to market ytelds of nsk free securities,

Inflation risk
A signiricant proportion of the defir:ed benefit liability is linked to inflation. An increase in the Inflation rate will increase the Compapy's ltabtlity

(viii)       Maturity profile ol. defined benefil obligatioii

Year
0 to I  Year
I  to 2 Year

2 to 3 Year

3 to 4 Year
4 to 5 Year
5 to 6 Year
6 Year onwards

The Company has obtained the Actuanal Valuation from M/s Charan Gupta Consul.ants Pnv-ate Limited for the }.ear ended 31 st March 2024 to brir.g
the provtsion for emplc.yee benefits in l]ne wtth lndAS 19 reqiiirements



S.ibsidiarv ComDanv

A           Defined contribillion plans

The amotmt recognised as expense towards coritril]ution to defined cootribiilion

plans for the year is as below:

Compap/s contribution to Provident Fund
Company's conthbution to Employees' State Insurance Scheme

Total

8          Defined benefit plan -Gratuity*

(i)          Presen. vat(ie of defined benefit obligation as at the end oT the year

Non-
Current

C           Disclosu re of gratuity

(ii)         Movemen. in the present value ofdefihed benefit obligation recogi]ised in tlie
balalme sheet

Present vallie Of defined benefit obligation as at tlte beginning orthe year
CuTent servue cost
Past sevroe cost

interest cost

Actuahal loss/giv)
Present `rallie of defil]ed I)eilefit obligation as at the end orthe year

(iii)         Expe[ise recognised in tlie statement of profit and loss consists of;

Current servue cost
Interest cost

Net impact on profi. (before fax)
Actuarial loss/(gain) recognised during the year
Amount recog[iised in total comprehensive income

(iv)        lhakup of 8cttiarinl (gain)/loss recogdised in the other comprehensive income:

Actuarial (gain)loss from change in financial assumptlon
Actuarial (gaintyloss from experience adjustment

Total actuarial (gain )/loss

(v)         ^cti.a ria I asstlmptions

Drscout rate
Rate of increase in compensatlon levels

Withdnd rate
Retirement age (in years)
Morty rate
Average Past Service (in years)
Average Age (in years)
Average future service (in years)

029
(0173)

(0.44)

7.34%

500%
5,00%
60cO

100% of IALM (:012-I 4)

I.58

32. I  I

27.89

Notes:

(a)         The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yield of Indian Goverrment bonds as at the balance sheet date for the estimated terms ofobligations

(b)         The estimates ot.future salary increases considered takes into account the Inflation, senior`ty,  promotion and other relevant factors
We have used the Projected Unit Credit (PUC) actuanal method to assess the plan's liabilities allowing for retirement. death-in-service and withdrawal
and also coTnpensated absence while in service.

Sensitivity analysis for gratuity lial)ili!y

Impact or cliange in discollnt rate
Present value of obligation at tlie end of tl)e year

- Impact due to increase of  0 S %
- Impact due to decrease of 0 5 %

Impact of change in salary increase
Presen( value of oblige.ion at tlie end orthe year

• Impact due to increase of 0 5 %
-Impact due to decrease of 0.5 %

20. I 5

( I -04)

]13

2015
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The above sensttivity ar`alysis is based on a change of an assumption while holding all  other assumpt`ons constalit   ln pTact]ce. thls is unllkely to occur

and changes  in some of the  assumptions may be cotTelated   When calculating the sensitivity of the defined bener`t  obligation to significant actuanal

assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated w[th the projected unit credit method at the end of the reportmg

period) has been applied which was applled while calculating the defined benerit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet
The methods and types of assumpt.ons used in preparlng the sensitivity analysis did not change when as compared to prevtous year

(vii)        The plan exposes the company to actunrial Tisks such as interest Tale risk and inflatton risk

liiterest rate risk
The present value of the defined benefit ltability ]s calculated iising a discount rate detemined by reference to market yields of risk free secunties

lnl'atiol' risk
A significant proportion of the dertned benefit liability is lLnked to inflation  An Increase tn the Inflation rate wi]t Increase the Company's liabil]ty

(viii)       Maturi.y prorile orderined benefit ol]ligation

Year
0 to  I  Year

I  to 2 Year

2 to 3  Year
3 to 4 Year

4 to 5 Year
5 to 6 Year
6 Year onwards

The Company has acquired the equity shares of the Bansal Steel & Power Limited (BSPL) on December 7, 2023   Accordingly. Provsion for employees

beneftts has been considered from December 7, 2023.  Further. The Subsidiary Company has obtained the Actuarial Valuation from M/s Charan Gupta

Consultants  Private  Limited for the year ended  3]st March  2024   to bring the provision for employee beliefi-,ts  in  line  wlth  lndAS  19 requirements.

Accordingly, Company have incorporated the gratuity report of actuanal valuation in the consol idated financial statements

4S           Finaricial Instruments

A           Financial assets and liabilities

The accountmg classlftcatton of each category of ftnancial instnrments. and their calTying anourlts. are set out below

Particulars Note Asal31March2024

Financin] assets measured at 8mortised cost:
6 10. 76Investment

Oner financla] assets 8&14 117.34

Trade Teceivables 11 3,5J9:rl
Cash and cash equivalents 12 18. 13

Bank balances other than above 7&1319&22 38.42

Total 3.763.93

6,81142

Financial ]iat]i]ities measured at fair value through pror]t or toss:

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
Borrowings
CIther financial llabll ities 24 3 16.12

TTade payables 23 59136

Total 7.718.91

8        Fair values hierarchy
The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in note (A) above has been classified IT.to threeicategories deper`dmg on the Inputs used in the
valuation technique, The hierarchy gives the highest priority. to quoted prices in active markets for jdentical assets or habiliti€s [Level I  measurements]
and lowest pnority to unobservable inputs [Level 3 measurem.ents]

Tl)e categories used are as fo][ows:
Level  I   Quoted prlces for Identical insairments in an active marke(.
Level 2   Directly (I.e,, as prices) or indirectly (i.e., denved from prices) observable market inputs, other than Level  I  inputs, and

Level 3   Inputs which are not based on observable market data (unobservable mpiits). Fair values are determ]ned Ln whole or in part using a Tiet asset
value or valuation model based on ass`rmptions that are neither supported by pnces from observable current market transactions in the same instrument
nor are they based on available market data.

8.I         Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value -recurring fair value mcasliremenls

On the edoptjon of [ndAS for first time GToup has not measured Its Assets and I.iabilities at Fair Value and the saTr.e policy has been adopted by. the
company for the year



8.2        Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cert

Fair value of fLnancial assets and ljabilities measured at amortised cost

^s at 31  March 2024 Level Carrying value Fair value Reference

Financial assets
3 10.76 1076 refer note 'd'Investment

ChheT fmancial assets 3 I  I 7.34 I  I 7 34 refer note 'a`

Trade receivables 3 3.S19.2| 3,579.27 refer note 'a'

Cash and cash equivalents 3 I 8.I 3 1&13 refer note 'a'

Bank balances other than above 33 38.426.811`42 38.426.8'142 refer note 'a'refernoteband c'

financial lia bill.ies
Borrowings

Other financial Liabilities 3 31612 3'6  '2 refer iiote 'a'

Trade payables 3 591.36 591.36 refer note 'a'

(a)         The calTying amount of loans,  trade receivables, other bank balances, cash and cash equivalents` trade payables and other financial liabilities which are
short term in  nature are considered to be same as their fair values

(b)         All the long term boITowing facilities availed by the company from unrelated parties are fixed rate facilities whlch are not subiect to changes in
underlying interest rate tndices` CulTent borrowlng rate is simjlar to the ftxed rate of interest on these facLlities. hence fair value is not significantly
different from the carrying value

(c)         All financial assets and financial liabihties are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hlcrarchy due to the use ofunobservab]e Inputs, inctuding
our credit risk

(d)         The caiTying amount of the Investments are measured at their Fair value  The Fair value has been derived from the quoted pnce for the ldentical
instnrments in an active market

C          Financial Risk Management

Risk Management
The Group's activities expose it to market nsk. Iiquidity risk and credit nsk  The Ciroup's board of directors has overall responsibility for the
establishment and oversight of the Group's risk managemeTit framework  This note explains the sources of rlsk which the entity ls exposed to and how
the entity manages the risk and the related rmpact in the financial statements

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management

CTedit ri skLiquidityriskMarketrisk- Interest rateMarketrisk-foreignex.changeMarketrisk-securityprice

Cash and cash equivalents, trade Tecelvables,
Ageing analysis, Credtt ratingsRollingcashflowforecastsSensttivityana]ysls

Banl( deposits,dtverslftcationof asset

and other financial assets ineasured at amortisedcostBOTTowingsandotherIiabilitiesLong-termborrowingsatvariableTales hose, credit limitsAvailabilityofcommittedcreditlinesandbotTowingfacilitiesNegotiationoftermsthatreflectthemarketfactors

The Group's risk management is ca[Tied out  under policies approved by the board ofdiTectors. The board of directors provides wTttten pr]neiples for
overall nsk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreigri exchange risk. interest rate risk. credit risk and investment of
excess liquidity

C.I        Credit risk
Credit nsk is the risk that a counterparty fails to dlscharge its obligation to the Group  The Gi.oup's exposure to cred]t r`sk is influenced mainly by
in``estments in redeemable preference shares, cash and cash equivalents, trade receivabtes` derivative rinancial Instruments and other financial assets
measured at amort!sed cost. The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties and incorporates this information into its
credit risk controls.

(a)        Credit riskmamgement
The Group assesses and manages credit risk based on internal credit rating system. Intemal credit Tating is performed for each class of f`naneial
instruments with differe[`t characteristics. The Group assigns the following credit ratings to each class of financial assets based on the assumpttons.
inpLi(s and factors specific to the class of rinancial assets

(I)    Lowcreditrisk

(ii)  Moderate credit risk

(Ill)   High credit risk
Based on business environment in whicli the Group operates. a default on a financial asset is cortstdered when the counter paTty fialls to make payments
wtthin the agreed time pertod as per contract. Loss Tales reflecting defaults are based on actual credit loss experience and considerLng differences
between current and his(orical econom ic conditions.

Assets are `witten off when there is no Teasonab]e expectation of recovery. such as a debtor declanng bankruptcy or a litigation decided against the
Group. The Group continues to engage with parties whose balances are written off and attempts to enforce repayment. Recoveries made are reeognised
in statement of profit and loss

HiE  EH



The Group provides for expected credit loss t}ased on tl)e following:

Basis of ca.egorisation Asset class exi)osed to credit risk

Low credlt risk Leans, Cash and cash equivalents, financial assets I 2 month expected credit loss
measured at amor(ised cost

Moderate credtt risk Trade receivables Trade recetvables - Life timeexpectedcreditloss

lligh credit risk Trade receivable Trade receivables - Llfe timeexpectedcreditlossorspecirlcprovisionwhicheverishigher

I. In8Iic[ai assets (nat expose                  yPartictllars
^sat31March2024

Ijow credii risk
1076Investments

Trade receivables net of credit lmpairment 3.579 27

Cash and cash equivalents 1813

Bank balances other than above 3842

Other financial assets I  I 7 342444

High credit risk
TTade reeeivables Credit lmpaiment
Total 3,788J7

Casli and cash equivalents and bank deposits
Credit nsk related (o cash and cash equlvalents and bank deposits ts managed by only accepting highly rated banks and diversifymg bank deposits and
accounts in different banks across the country.

Derivative finaiicial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are considered to have tow credit risk since the contracts are with reputable financial Institutions

Trade receivables
Trade  Tecejveb]es  are  generally  unsecured  and  non-interest  bearing`   There  is  no  significant  concentratiorl  of credit  nsk.  The  GToup's  credit  nsk

managemertt  policy  in  relation  to  trade  receivables  involves  period:cally  assessing  the  financial  reliabilrty  of customers,  taking  into  account  their

financial positton. past experience and oth.er factors. The utilization of credit limit is regularly monitoTed. The Group's cTedit nsk is mainly confucd to

the risk of customers defaulting against credit sales made. Outstanding trade Teceivables are regularly monitoTed by credit mon]toring Ciroup  [n respect

of trade recei\'ables. the Group recognises a provision  for lifetime expected credit tosses after evaluating the  Individual  probabiltt]es of default of its

customers which are duly based on the Inputs received from the marketing teams of the Group

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
Loans and other financial assets are considered to have low credit risk since there is a low risk of default by the co`interparties owtng to their strong
capacity to meet contractual cash flow obligations in the near term. CTedit risk related to these other financial assets is managed by monitoring the
recoverab:lily of such amounts continuously, while at the sane time internal control system in place ensure the amounts are within defined timits

(I))         Elpec(ed credit losses Tor rinancial assets

(i)          Financial assets (other than trade receival)lee)
Group  provides for expected credit  losses on  loans other than  trade receivables by assessing indlvidual  financial  Instruments for expectation  of any

credit losses
- For cash & cash equivalents, other bank balances and derivative fmancial instnrments- Since the Group deals with only hlgh-rated ban)cs and financ]al

institutlons, credit nsk in respect of cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial  instruments. other bank balances and bank deposlts is evaluated as

very low.
-For loans comprising security deposits paid -credit risk is considered low because the Group is in possession of the undeTlying asset.

-  For  other  financial  assets  -  CI-edit  risk  ]s  evaluated  based  on  Group's  knowledge  of the  credit  worthiness  of those  parties  and  loss  allowance  is

measured  For such financial assets, the Group policy is to provide for 12 month expected ci.edit tosses upon inliia! recognit]on and provide for lifetime

expected credit tosses upon stgrifieant increase in credit risk.

As 8131  Mal.cli 202j Gross car.vying amoiint Expected Expe€led Carrying amount not

probability ofdefault credittosses of loss allowance

Investments 10'76 1076

Cash and casT`. equiv-alents 18.13 18'3

Bank ba(ances other tlian abo\'e 38.42 3842

Other financial assets I I 7 34 I  17.34

(ii)         Eipec.ed credit loss for trade receivab]es under simplified approacl]
As at 3 I  March. 2024. the Group considered the individual probabili{jes of default of its finaJtcial assets (other than trade recejvables) and deterTr.ined
that in respect of counterparties with low credit risk, no default events are considered to be possible within the  12 months after the reporting date  ln
respect of trade receivables, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to tifetime expected credit tosses using a simplified approach.

--=,  ±



As at 31  Marcli 2024 Gross carrying amount Significant increase ^llowahce Carrying amourit iiet
id credit risk for expectedcreditlosses of loss allou'ance

Between oTie to six month overdue 3,581 `01 '815 979 3,553.08

Between six month to one year overdue 1985 1180 805

GTeater than one year overdue 2`85 285

Total 3,603.71 I 8. I S 24.44 3S61.13

Reconcilia(ion of loss allowance provision from begiitning to end of reporling period:
Reconciliation of loss allowance Trade receival)les

Loss allowanee I  ^pril 2023 I 0.84

Loss al]owaitce 07 December 2023 - BSPL 18Jl

Charge in stateTuent of profit and loss
(161)

Bad debts `wite off during the year (3  '0)

Loss 8llowance As at 31 March 2024 24.4J

C.2        Liquidi(y risk

I,iquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter dtfficulty in meeting the obligations associa(ed with its flnancial ]tabilities that are settled by
delivertng cash or anothei. financial asset  The Group approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible. that lt will have sufficient liquidity
to meet its liabilities when they are due

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows  llie Group
takes Into account the ]iquidity of the market in which the entity operates

(a)         Maturities orfinallcial liabilities
The tables below analyse the Group's financial liabilities Into relevant matinty groupings based on their contractual matur[t]es

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows  Balances due withjn  I 2 montlis equal their carrymg balances as the
impact of discounting is not significant:

^s al 3l  March 2024                                                                                                                               Less than  I year More thanIyears Total

Nonderivatives
3,110.26 3,041 . I 7 6J'll.42BotTOWu`g

Trade payables 591'24 012 59lJ6
Other financial liabll ities 316.1 2 316.12

Derivatives
Dertvative liabi I ity

Total 4`611.62 3'04128 7.718.91

C.3        Market risk

(a)         Foreignctlrrency risk
The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk in the normal col:rse of its business, Multiple c'uiTency exposures arise from commerctal transactions

like sales. purchases. borrowings, recognized financial assets and liabilities (monetary items). Certa)n transactions of the Company act as natural hedge

as  a  ponion  of both  assets  and  liabilities  are  denominated  in  similar  foreign  currencies.  For the  remaining  exposure  to  foreign  exchange  risk,  the

Company adapts the pol]c)r of selective hedging based on risk. perception of management  FOTeigri exchange hedging contracts are camed at fair value

Foreigr` currency exposures that are not hedged by derivative instnrments outstanding as on the balance sheet date are as under

Parent Company
Advance for Capital Goods
USD

Payable .o Suppliers/Creditors
USD

Trade receivables
USD
EURO
GBP

(t_>_   ds



Advance from Customers
USD

EUR0

Stil)sidiarv ComDanv

Artyancetosuppliers
USD
EURO

The impact on tl`e Company's profit before tax and equity due to clianges in (Ite foreign currency exchange rates are given below:

Particu]ar8 Impact on profit before tax on ]mpac. on profit before
increase tax on decrease

^sat ^sa,
31  Marcli 202J 31  Marcli 2024

USD -Increase/decrease by 5.00% 936 (9 36)

EURO - [ncTease/deeTease by 5.00% 1145 ( 11   45)

GBP -Increase/decrease by 5.00% 213 (213)

Total 22.93 (22.93)

(b)        Interest raterisk

(i)

(ii)

Financia I liabilities

The GToup's policy is to minim]se Interest rate cash flow nsk exposures on external rimncing, At March 31, 2024, the Group is not exposed to changes
in interest rates as all bank borrowings cafTy ftxed interest rates  The Ciroup's investments in fixed deposits carry fixed interest rates

Financial assets
The Gi.oup's loan to  employees. other parties and deposits with barLks are camed at amortised cost and are fixed rate trlstruments, They are` therefore`
not subject to interest rate risk as defined in lnd AS  I 07, since neither the canying amoimt nor the future cash flows wtll fluctuate because of a change
in market interest Tales

46   Capital Mamgement
The Group's caphal management obgeetives are to ensure the tons term sustenance of the Choup as a going concern whtle maintainiTig healthy capita]
ratios, strong external credit rating and to maximise the return for stakeholders

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adyustments to it in the light of changes in ecoriomic conditions and the risk charactertstics of the
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital stmcture. the GToup may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders. issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The Group also judiciously manages its capital allocations towards different vanous

purposes viz. sustenance, expansion, straegic acquisttion/ initiativ-es and/ or to monetize market opportunities
Gearing ratio
Particulars Asa'31Marcli2024

Total borrowings (Including cuTTent matum]es of long ten debt) 6.811.42

Less. Cash and cash equivalents I 8` I 3

Net debt (A) 6,79329
Total equity (8) 4.223.70

Equity and i[et debt (C=A+B) 11,016.99

Gearing ratio (A/C) 0.62

47    1lerivative coiltracts entered iiit® by .he Company arld outstanding as on Marcli 31, 2024 for hedging foreign curreney risks:

47.I    The Company deals in foreign currency for`^/ard exchange contracts to hedge its risks assceiated with fluctuations ]n fore]gn currencies durlng the year
The followjng are outstanding derivatives contracts

No  of contracts   Forelgn currency

39                                          234

3'                                                    168

Nature of deri`/ati`/e

Forwa rd covers
USDINR
Iunomu

47t2    The details of unhedged foreigri currency exposure as at the ycarend is as follows

Export trade receivables
ln USD
ln GBP
(n EURO
In INR

Total

i!v>  4



47.3    Earnings in foreign currency (accrual I)asis)

Export of Coeds
I.`()t} value for the exp()rl Iias lieen considered.

47.4    Expendi(ure in foreign exchange (accrual basis)

Legal and professional charges
Technical Service Charges
Miscellaneous expenses

Commission on Sale
Freight & Forwarding
Salay Payment to NR
Travetingexpenses
Interest Paid*

Reinbursement of Expenses
Total
*Interest paid in foreigri exchange comprises the interest paid for bills discounting facility. without recourse to the company for expoTl receivables from

India factoring solutions P\rt Ltd

47.S   Va]ueofimports on c[F I)asis

Capital Goods
Raw Material
Consunables Stores

Total

48   Revenue from Contracts witli the Customers

(a)         Disaggregation or revenue
The Group has performed a disaggregated analysis of revenues considermg the nature. amount, timing and unceTtajnty of revenues  This includes
disclosure of revenues by geography and timing of recognition.

Revel.ue from operations Asat31March 2024

Revenile by geography
21.820.91Within india

Outside India 2.8-i941

Total 24.660J'2J.6603I
Revenue I)y time
Revenue reeognised at poiTlt in ltme

Revenue reeognised over time
Total 24'66031

(I))         Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities
lnd AS 115 also requires dlsclosure of `Tevenue recognised in the reporting penod that was Included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of
the penod' and `revenue recognised tn the reporting period from performance obligations satisfzed (or partially satisfied) in previous penods  Same has
been disclosed as below

Particulars Asat31March 2024

Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in the contract llability balance at the beginning of
6294

the period

de-_ #



(a)         Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

Description Asa'31Marcli 2024

Contract liabi]ities related to sale orgoods
57.00Advance from customers (refer note no 27)

Discount lssueable to customers 15403.5J92:J

Contract assets re]a(ed (o sale of goods
Unbilled revenue
Trade receivabtes (refer Tiote no  I I )

(d)         Reconci]ia.ion of revenue recognised iD statement of profit and Less with contract price

Description Asa'31Marcli 202J

Contract price 24.675.71

Adjustments
1540Discount to customers (Includes sale rate difference)

Revenue from operations as per Statement of Profit and I.oss 2,,660Jl

49    Defail8 related lo I)orrowings sect]red against current assets
The company has boITowings from State Bank of India. Canara Bank. HDFC Bank limited and Lnduslnd Bank Linited on the basis of Secunty of
Current Assets of the Company, and the Statements of current Assets filed by the Company with Bank are in agreement with the Books of Accoimts
The subsidiary has borrowings from State Bank of India on the basis of Security of Current Assets of the subsldiary, and the Statements of Current
Assets flled by the subsidiary with Bank are in agreement with the Books of Accounts

S0   Contingent liabilities :
Parent Company

a.     The Company has Bill Discounting facitt]y. unsecured in riature, fran   South Indian  Bank and the amoiint in respect of btlls pending for collection in
the hands of Banks as on  are Rs`  148 38 Mjlllons for South Indian Bank

b.     The Company has given Bank Guerantess arnouliting to Rs  70 45 Mil!ion at the end of the year,These guarantees are taken for the normal course of
business of the company. Moreover. the company has not mcurTed any liabilities as of reporting date related to these guarantees  However, they
represents potional future obligation that may aris¢ tf the coimteT party falls to fiullfill its contractual obligations.

a.    As per Income Tar Portal, there are certain demand are showing for the assessement year 2008 & 2015 for Rs. 0.19 million and for the
same company has already filled respond. however. these are not yet deleted by the Depalment at Income Tax Portal.

d.   The company has reccl.ved demand notice under Indirect tax (GST) for the financial year 2019-20 for Rs.  I .54 million, however the same
has been responded by the company that same is not tenable under the provisions of GST law.

Su bsidia ry Compally

a.    The Company has been Served with Penalty order dated 24.12 20t 8 of Rs  5 00 million by Deputy director of Durectorate of Enforcement against which

appeal has been filed to Special Director (Appeals) .

b.     The Company had obtained Advance licensed no 0510314779 dated  17.01.2012 ngainst which raw material CIF Valued Rs  12.50  Millions (equivalent
to USD 0.24 million) was imported and export obligation was FOB Rs  14 38 millioiis (equivalent to USD 0.27 mil!ions) which was partially fulfilled of
Rs.  9.18  million (Equivalent to  U'SD  0169 mll]ion)  up{o  23.05,2014.  But till  date the company has not redeemed  such  license even  if obhgation has
beenfulfilled."

c.     From the office of commissioner of custom dated 22-8-2019 bearing SCN 342/2019-20tDBK/BRC for Rs 0.08 Million pertaining o the bill dated 27-12.
2012.,

d.    As per Portal of Income Tax, Company has outstanding demand Tax of Rs   2.46 Million & accrued  Interest of Rs  23 07  Million for the Assessment
Year 2013. Tax Demand of Rs   56.77  Million for the Assessment Year 2015 and Tax  Demand of Rs   21.37  Mlilion & Acc"ed  Interest of Rs   10.69
Million for Assessment Year 2017 and and these demands are still disputable *

e.    As per Portal of Traces-TDS,Company has outstanding demand of Rs  0 55 Million whtch is pnor to the penod of NCLT proceddings. I

f.    The Company has given Corporate Guarantee in favour of M/S Bansal Aradhya Steel Private Lim]ted in coTinection with the Loan taker, from lndt!sind
Bank and  Bajaj  Finance  Ltd, as  on  March  31, 2024, corporate guarantee  in connection  w[th  the  loan taken  is  Rs   867`24  Million  and Rs.loo  Million
respectively .

9.    The company has availed Bank G8arantees amounting to Rs 24 65  MIllion at the er,d of the year. These guarantees are talten for the riomal cou!rse of
business  of the  company.  Moreover,  the  company  has  not  incuITed  any  liabilities  as  of reporting  date  related  to  these  guarantees   Howe\'er,  they
represents potential future obligation that may arlse if the counter party falls to fulfill Its contractual obligation.



h.    As per GST portal company have a demand of Rs.  I .69 million for the financial year 2017-18, for which company has filed its response
to department.
*The  Corporate  Insolvency  Resolutlon  Process  was  initiated  against  the  company  on  25.07_2017  and  the  Hon'ble  New  Delhi  Bench  of National

Company  Law Tribuml  vide  its  order  dated  0412 2018  lias  approved  the  resolution  plan  for the  assesse  company  i e,  the  corporate  debtor(under
lBC,2016) and the resolution plan of M/S  Bansal  High Carbons (P) Ltd  was finalised at  Rs.  72  Crores to be paid exclusively to the SBI   The relevant
extract of the resolution plan as accepted by the COC is given at Para I 5 on Page  13 to  15 of the order and as per the said order the corporate deb(or I e
the assesse company has sought waiver of 100°/a dues on account of Statutory dues.  Further Section 238 of the IBC, 2016 overrides all other laws and
states that .. The provisions of this code shall have effect, notwithstanding anything inconsistent therewith contained in any other law for the time being
in force or ally instrument having effect by virtue of any such law " The same view has been taken by the Apex Court in Pr. Commissioner of Income
Tax VS Mormet I spat and Energy Ltd. The Hon.ble High Court of liyderahad in  Leo Edibles &  Pats  Limited Vs The Tax Recovery Officer(Central).
Income Tax Department, Iiyderabad and others also held that the dues of the Income Tar  Deparment does not get any prionty under lBC, 2016 and
necessarily the order provided under Section 53 of tlie IBC. 2016 has to be followed.  In view of aforesaid. all contingent liabilities as disclosed in note
27. I  (a) to (I) has not been accepted/not provided for in the books of accoiints by the company and as per the lionble NCLT.s, (New Delhi) Order dated
04.02 2020, which states that all  statutory demands recelved after acceptance  of the  Resolution  Plan  which has been  implemented  to a  great exteiit
cannot be modified.  All  untimely claims i e.  claims pertaining to period  prior to C[RP date  are declined/wal`.ed   Hence`  all  claiTns/demands  including
Government dues and statutory dues `ml. prior to CIRP penod dated 25.07 2017 and post resolution plan order dated 04.12 2018 are new demands and
hence, same is Ttot sustainabte
Company has f]Iled a Civil Write Petition (Gang [nox Limited vs Umon of India & others) before the Hobble High Court of Delhi at New Delh] under
Article 226 ofconstitution of ]ndia. seeking of issuance of order, directors to waiver from vanous demands, notices

Capital Commitments :
Parent Company

a.     Capital Commitments :   The estimated capital commitment. not provided for in the accounts however net of adrances. of Rs  44915 M]llions

b.     The company has imported certain capital goods items under the export promotion capital goods scheme (EPCG) to utilize the benefit of a NIL or
concessiona] lmpozt ciistom duty rates  These benefits are subject to certaln future export obligation within the stipulated years. Such Export obligation
at year end aggregated to Rs  996.72 Million.

Subsidiary Cofnpany

a.     Estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on capital accounts and not provided for Rs  02.80 Million

51           ltiformation under section l86(4) of the companies Act, 2013
In view of section 186(4) of companies act 2013, it is disclosed that the subsidiary has made invesments in SBI Mutual Fund as disclosed in note
number 6 of these rmancial statements. In addition subsidiary has provided sec`inty. and corporate guaraiitee in the[r favour  These in`.estment, loan and

guarantee are provided for the purposes of business

S2          Ratios
This is the first year of consolidation of financial statements of the company hence, Ratios analysts Lnformtation is not not applicable.

S3         0TII E R STATUTORY INFORMATION
53.0|       The Group does not have any transactions and outstanding balances diinng the culTent as well previous year with compames smick off under section

248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of companies Act,1956

S3.02       Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclasslfied wherever necessary to confirm to cuTent penod classification

53.03       The code on social security, 2020 ("the code") relating to employee benefits dunng employment and post<mployment received presidenttal assent in
September 2020. Subsequendy, the Ministry of Labour and Employment had released the draft rules on the aforementioned Code, Ilowever, the same is

yet to be not!fted  The Company will evaluate the impact and make necessary adyusments to the financial statemer,ts in the penod when the Code will
be notified and will come into effect`

53.04       The Group do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been Initiated oT pendir,g against the Group for holdmg any Benami property

53.05       The Group do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet (o be registered with Registrar of companies (ROC) beyond the statutory perlod

53.06       The Group has not traded or invested in crypto cuTency or vi]thl currency during the finaricial year

53.07       The Group has not any e.`c]uded such transaction whlch  is not recorded  in the books  of accounts that has been  surendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessmer.ts under the Income Tax Act.  I 961  (such as.  search or survey or any other relevant provisions ot` the Income Tax
Act,196( .

53.08       The Group has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any band or fir"ctal  institutlon or other lender (as defined ur.der the Companies Act. 20t 3) or
consorti`rm thereof. in accordance with the guide]mes on wilful defaulters Issued by the Reserve Bank of India

53.09       The  Group  has  not  received  any  fund  from  any  person  oT  any  entlty.  incli:ding  foreign  entltles  (Fending  Part}r)  with  the  understanding  (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
i   Directly or indirectly lend or invest tn other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by a or on behalf of th.e Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries), or
ii. PTovide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the UltiTnate Beneficiaries

53. |0       The Group has not advanced or loaned oT Invested funds to ariy' person or any entity, .ncludlng foreign eTitities  (ir.temediaries) with the understanding
that the iTi{erznediary shall :
i.  directly or indirectly lend or invest  in  other persons or entitles  identified  ln  ar.y manner whatsoever by a oT on  behalf ot` the  Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries); or
ii. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate

tr4,  #



S4          Post reporting date events
NeltheT aduusting nor non-adyustlng events have occurred between March 31, 2024 aJid the date of authorlsation Of these I.inancia] statements

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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